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MILESTONES

Agarwal Family
establishes HMK

Auto Packs for
premium boxes

Agarwal Family enters
box manufacturing

with Kaushik Products
(semi-automatic)

1992

Corrugated box venture
launched by Gupta &

Bothra

Agarwal Family
establishes HMK
Agarwal Family

premium boxes

MNM Triplewall
Containers established
through Gupta-Bothra

merger

HMK Autopacks merged
into MNM Triplewall

Containers

(semi-automatic)

Crossed Revenue

Unit V Commercial Production started.

Capacity Expansion of Unit III from 5000 to 7000

Following developments took place

The Company has established Unit
IV in Hyderabad, dedicated to the
production of corrugated boxes.
A new subsidiary, B and B Colour
Cartons Private Limited, has been formed
to specialize in the manufacturing of mono carton boxes.
The Company's shares have been successfully migrated
from the NSE SME portal to the NSE/BSE Main Board.

Responded to Covid-19
with 2 innovative,
recyclable beds for

isolation units

Added 60000 sq
feet of plant area in

Unit III (TN)

Unit III (TN) got

9001-2015

Unit III (TN) became
a SEDEX approved

plant

merger

Company listed on the
Emerge Platform of National

Stock Exchange of India

Name changed to
B&B Triplewall

Containers Private
Ltd 

Conversion of
Company from Private

Limited to Public
Limited

B&B built India's most
advanced, highest-capacity
plant on an 8.17-acre site

1997 2009

201120152016

2017 2018 2018 2018

2019202020202021

2022 2024
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B&B AT A GLANCE
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Manufacturing quality corrugated boxes is not only
our passion, but our mission too.

Industry Leader Since 2011
Founded in 2011, we've established ourselves as a
leading manufacturer of high-
quality corrugated boxes and boards.

Advanced Manufacturing & Diverse Products
Our state-of-the-art facilities allow us to offer a
broad range of corrugated packaging solutions,
catering to the needs of major MNCs and
packaging companies.

Dedicated Workforce

committed to delivering exceptional
service and quality products.

Pioneering Sheet Feed Model

segment to adopt the sheet feed model, we
demonstrate our commitment to innovation
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Strong Values Driven Operations

Quality Policy Of Company
Provide Quality Products at Competitive price & Maximum Customer
Satisfaction by active participation of all employees

We are committed to
• Providing consistent quality in every aspect of our work
• Continually improve product quality
• Adhere to delivery schedules
• Render prompt and effective customer service

We are Responsible for
• Close monitoring of quality
• systems during manufacturing
• Ensuring quality inputs

: To be “20 IN 27” it means to

We strive to con nue to enhance shareholder’s value
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Latest Optimization

Growth Plans
Kraft Paper :
Backward Integration

We have set up superior quality kraft paper manufacturing unit (1,08,000 mtpa)
which will largely (around 80%) cater to inhouse requirement. The purpose of
backward integrating into Kraft Paper was:

a) Ensure best quality and consistency, improve columnar strength of boxes
b) Need for kraft paper that suits modern high-speed corrugators
c) Need to overcome bad odour problem in locally available kraft paper

e) Reduce wastage in the manufacturing, need to overcome issues like paper
cracking in converting activities

Micro Fluted Carton :
New Product Offering

The Company has set up a facility for the manufacture of Micro Fluted Cartons
with capacity of 500 TPM and the project is operational from August 2023.
Currently Mono carton business is dominated by few large players and there is
huge growth potential given the growth of QSR, FMCG and Electronics.
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Awards & Recognitions

–
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INFRASTRUCTURE
OVERVIEW
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We Take Pride In Our Quality And Infrastructure

V1st Indian company to install both BHS (Germany)

Quality Assurance: We have our in-house testing
laboratory

 All our processes
and system are energized by ERP technology

V1st factory in Indian corrugated Industry to install a
100% closed loop steam condensate recovery system

Safety Assurance : We adhere to all the
applicable safety norms

Highest capacity plant among other industry
players

Our State-of-the-art facility bring about a high
degree of precision in our box making process

Installed a specialized Starch Kitchen and
equipment to reuse machine wash water
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Combined Annual Utilized Capacity (Sq. Mtrs)

Combined Annual Utilized Capacity (Metric Tons)
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FINANCIAL
OVERVIEW 
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Operational Revenue
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Revenue Breakdown - Industry Sector Revenue

Revenue Breakdown - State Wise
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OUR CLIENTS
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Proud Partners

Sector Agnostic Clients
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ENVIRONMENTAL
SUSTAINABILITY
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Leading & Growing Market

Strong Demand For Sustainable Packaging

It is one of the strongest growing
sectors in the country

More than 49% of the paper
produced in the country is used for
packaging purposes

Convenient, Safe, & Cushioned Packaging demand in
sectors like: Agriculture, Pharma, Retail, FMCG, Food,
Electronics, and Toy Manufacturing.

Growing e-commerce market has increased demand for
corrugated boxes for the shipment of products

Solid demand of Fresh Fruits and Vegetables Packaging

Rising Disposable Income & On-the-go Lifestyle

Increasing demand of Home, Personal Care Goods,
& Electronic Goods

The recyclability proposition of paper as well as growing
environmental consciousness among consumers towards sustainable
packaging is drawing heightened industry attention to entice
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Environmental Sustainability & Circular
Economy Initiative

We are a 0-discharge company
We have installed green technology to help minimize environmental damage,
as the conservation of the environment is of prime importance to us

We at B&B are committed
to the environment

Our closed loop steam
condensate recovery
system saves about 3
Million liters of water
per year and saves on
fuel (Coal)

We adhere to the best practices
at an international level

Our specialized Starch Kitchen
uses the machine wash water
that comes of the Glue tray back
for making fresh glue. Most
manufacturers dispose this water
out into the environment

We at B&B are committed
to the environment
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
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STATUTORY
REPORTS
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7,309.93
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
B&B Triplewall Containers Limited,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by B&B Triplewall Containers Limited (CIN:
L21015KA2011PLC060106) (here-in-after called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025
(“the audit period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under to the extent of
Regulation 74 and 76 of SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

iv. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
borrowings. ; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (to the extent applicable);

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client to the extent of
securities issued;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

vi. The Company has identified following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

1. The Shop & Establishment Act, 1954 and rules made thereunder
2. The Factories Act, 1948 and allied labor laws
3. Local/Municipality Laws

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We have not examined compliance by the Company with applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect
tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated
professionals.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, except for the following:

1. Certain Charge related e-forms have been delayed filed by the Company with the Registrar of
Companies,

2. During the audit period, the Company did not have a qualified Company Secretary appointed as
Compliance Officer up to June 23, 2024, in violation of the requirements under Regulation 6 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Consequently, the stock
exchanges (NSE/BSE) imposed penalties for the said non-compliance, which were duly paid by the
Company.

A qualified Company Secretary was appointed with effect from June 24, 2024.

3. As per Regulation 31(4) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011 (“SEBI Takeover Code”), the declaration by the promoters regarding pledge/encumbrance on
securities is required to be furnished within seven working days from the closure of the financial
year. However, in respect of the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the said declaration was
submitted with a delay.

4. It is observed that the intimation for Closure of Trading Window for the quarter ended 30th June,
2024, covering the period from 1st July, 2024 till 48 hours after the declaration of financial results,
was filed with the Stock Exchange(s) on 1st July, 2024. As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, such intimation is required to be given prior to the commencement of the
trading window closure period, so as to effectively inform designated persons and stakeholders in
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advance.

5. The Outcome of the Board Meeting held on 30th May, 2024, was filed with the BSE beyond the
prescribed timeline from the conclusion of the meeting, in contravention of the requirements under
Regulation 30(6) read with Regulation 33(3)(c) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

6. BSE imposed a penalty of Rs. 11,800 on the Company for non-filing of the XBRL of Voting Results for
the event dated May 15, 2024 (Postal Ballot), within the prescribed timeline of two working days
from its conclusion.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

As per the Minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board
and Committees thereof were carried through with requisite majority.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there was no event / action having a major bearing on the
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.

For SCS AND CO. LLP
Practicing Company Secretaries

CS Abhishek Chhajed
Partner
FCS: 11334 COP: 15131
ICSI Unique Code: - L2020GJ008700
Peer Review Number: - 1677/2022

Dated: 07.08.2025
Place: Ahmedabad
UDIN: F011334G000960139

Note: This report is based on information, documents, and material etc., seen/verified/made available to us.
Further, this report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure -1’ and forms
an integral part of this report.
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Annexure -1
To
The Members,
B&B Triplewall Containers Limited,

Our report of even date to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
SEBI laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations is
the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. This Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy and effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For SCS AND CO. LLP
Practicing Company Secretaries

CS Abhishek Chhajed
Partner
FCS: 11334 COP: 15131
ICSI Unique Code: - L2020GJ008700
Peer Review Number: - 1677/2022

Dated: 07.08.2025
Place: Ahmedabad
UDIN: F011334G000960139
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. B&B TRIPLEWALL 
CONTAINERS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year then ended, notes to the standalone financial statements including material accounting 
policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone 
financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other Accounting Principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its Profit, total 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone 
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with 
the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion 
on standalone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the 
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.  

A) Provisions for taxation, litigation, and other significant provisions

Accrual for tax and other contingencies requires the Management to make judgements and estimates in 
relation to the issues and exposures arising from a range of matters relating to direct tax, indirect tax, transfer 
pricing arrangements, claims, general legal proceedings, environmental issues, and other eventualities arising 
in the regular course of business.

The key judgement lies in the estimation of provisions where they may differ from the future 
obligations. By nature, provision is difficult to estimate and includes many variables. Additionally, 
depending on timing, there is a risk that costs could be provided inappropriately that are not yet committed.

How the matter was addressed in Our audit procedures included:

We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recognition of provisions.

We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material provisions in light of the nature of 
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the exposures, applicable regulations, and related correspondence with the authorities.

 We challenged the assumptions and critical judgements made by management which impacted their 
estimate of the provisions required, considering judgements previously made by the authorities in the 
relevant jurisdictions or any relevant opinions given by the Company’s advisors and assessing whether there 
was an indication of management bias.

We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the Company’s internal tax and legal 
team.

We performed retrospective review of management judgements relating to accounting estimate 
included in the financial statement of prior year and compared with the outcome.

B)  Assessment of contingent liabilities relating to litigations and claims

The Company is periodically subject to challenges / scrutiny on range of matters relating to direct tax, 
indirect tax, and transfer pricing arrangements.

Further, potential exposures may also arise from general legal proceedings, environmental issues etc. in 
the normal course of business.

Assessment of contingent liabilities disclosure requires Management to make judgements and estimates 
in relation to the issues and exposures. Whether the liability is inherently uncertain, the amounts involved 
are potentially significant and the application of accounting standards to determine the amount, if any, to 
be provided as liability, is inherently subjective.

How the matter was addressed in our audit procedures included:

We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recording and re-assessment of contingent 
liabilities.

We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material contingent liabilities in light of the 
nature of exposures, applicable regulations, and related correspondence with the authorities.

We discussed the status and potential exposures in respect of significant litigation and claims with the 
Company’s internal legal team including their views on the likely outcome of each litigation and claim and 
the magnitude of potential exposure and sighted any relevant opinions given by the Company’s advisors.

We assessed the adequacy of disclosures made.

We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the Company’s internal tax and 
legal team.

We performed retrospective review of management judgements relating to accounting estimate 
included in the financial statement of prior year and compared with the outcome.

Information Other than the standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but 
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that there is a material statement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Managements and Board of Directors Responsibility for the standalone financial statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these  standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the  
financial position,  financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the 
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Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
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safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company as far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2025 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on March 31,2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure A’. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matter to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as detailed in 
Note 42 of standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company and same has been transferred accordingly.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to 
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any 
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person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any 
material misstatement. 

v. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance with sec 123 of the 
companies act 2013. 

vi. Based on our examination, which includes test checks, the Company has used accounting software 
for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come 
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been 
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

For Surana Naveen Vikash & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 323231E 

Naveen Surana 
Partner  
Membership No. 057841 
UDIN: 25057841BMIKFZ4401 

Place: Bangalore 

Date: 30th May 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of B&B TRIPLEWALL 
CONTAINERS LIMITED ("the company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial Controls 
over financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of  standalone financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
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company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the  standalone 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For Surana Naveen Vikash & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 323231E 

Naveen Surana 
Partner  
Membership No. 057841 
UDIN: 25057841BMIKFZ4401 

Place: Bangalore 

Date: 30th May 2025
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Annexure “B” to the independent Auditors Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED of even date) 

In respect of its Property Plant and Equipment, Intangibles: 
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets. 

As stated to us, property, plant and equipment has been physically verified by the 

management at reasonable intervals; and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 

verification. 

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company 

is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in 

the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the company,

As per information provided to us the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and 

Equipment (including, right to use the asset) or intangible asset or both during the year.

As stated to us no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for 

holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and rules made thereunder. 

In respect of its inventory:

As informed to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management during the 
year. The frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage followed by 
the management is appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification 
between the physical stock and the book records.

On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess 
of rupees five crore from banks on the security of the current assets.  The quarterly returns or 
statements filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are not in agreement with 
the books of account of the Company, and details of variances and reasons for such variances 
are disclosed in the note No. 48 of the standalone financial statements.

In Respect of Investments, Guarantee and Security or Loans and Advances given by the Company

(a) During the year the company has granted loan or advance in the nature of loan to subsidiary company 
the details are provided below: 

Particulars Amount In Lakhs 

Aggregate amount granted during the year to Subsidiary 168.50 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of 

above cases i.e. Subsidiary 

Nil 

(b) In our opinion, the loan and advance in the nature of loan granted during the year are not 

prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 

(c) In respect of the loan or advance in the nature of loan granted the schedule of repayment is not 

stipulated as the loan in repayable on demand. 

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 

performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining 

outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 
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(e) No loans granted by the Company which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed 

or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties  

(f) The above specified loan or advance in the nature of loan granted is repayable on demand, the 

details are provided below:  

Nature Of 
Relationship 

Amount of loan or 
advance in the nature 
of loan outstanding 

Percentage to the total 
Loans and Advances in 

the nature of loans 

Subsidiary 
Company                            Nil  0.00%

Loan to directors

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied 
with the provisions of Section 185 and Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, 
investments made, guarantees provided, and securities given. 

Deposits

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at 
March 31, 2025 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. No order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or 
Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal for contravention of these sections or any other 
relevant provision(s) of the Act and the relevant rules. 

Cost Records

Company has maintained cost records as specified by the central government under sub section (1) of section 
148 of the companies act 2013. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records. 

Statutory Dues

(a) According to the record of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and 
any other Statutory dues to the appropriate authorities, have generally been regularly deposited with the 
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us there were no outstanding 
statutory dues as on March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) There are no dues of income tax, sales tax, value added tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of 
any dispute except the following: 

Sr. No Name of the Statue Nature of Dues 
Forum Where 

dispute is 
pending 

Due Amount 
In lakhs 

1 Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax and Interest on 
Income Tax (AY 2017-18) 

 Commissioner 
of Income Tax 

(Appeals) 
             45.83  

2 Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax and Interest on 
Income Tax (AY 2013-14) 

High Court of 
Karnataka            100.49  

 Unrecorded Income

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, there were no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(43 of 1961), as such reporting under this clause does not arise. 

Repayment of Borrowings

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
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defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and government and dues 
to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been declared as 
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the company term loans were applied for the 
purpose for which the loans were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short 
term basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes.

The company has not raised any money from any person or entity for the account of or to pay the 
obligations of its associates, subsidiaries, or joint ventures, hence the reporting under this clause does not 
arise.

According to the information and explanations given to us the company the company has not raised 
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate 
companies.

Funds raised and utilization

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had not 
raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the 
current financial year as such reporting under this clause and sub clause does not arise.

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting under this sub clause Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

Reporting of Fraud and Whistleblower complaints

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the audit period. 

Nidhi Company

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

Compliance of transaction with Related Parties

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with 
the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone 
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

 Internal Audit

The company have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during 
the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

Non-Cash Transaction with Directors

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. B&B TRIPLEWALL 
CONTAINERS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year then ended, notes to the standalone financial statements including material accounting 
policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone 
financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other Accounting Principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its Profit, total 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone 
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with 
the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion 
on standalone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the 
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.  

A) Provisions for taxation, litigation, and other significant provisions

Accrual for tax and other contingencies requires the Management to make judgements and estimates in 
relation to the issues and exposures arising from a range of matters relating to direct tax, indirect tax, transfer 
pricing arrangements, claims, general legal proceedings, environmental issues, and other eventualities arising 
in the regular course of business.

The key judgement lies in the estimation of provisions where they may differ from the future 
obligations. By nature, provision is difficult to estimate and includes many variables. Additionally, 
depending on timing, there is a risk that costs could be provided inappropriately that are not yet committed.

How the matter was addressed in Our audit procedures included:

We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recognition of provisions.

We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material provisions in light of the nature of 

 Register under RBI Act 1934

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
193. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

Cash Losses

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial 
year. 

Resignation of Statutory Auditors 

There has been no resignation of auditor during the reporting period as such reporting under this clause 
does not arise. 

 Material Uncertainty on Meeting Liabilities 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment 
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, the auditor’s 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of Standalone Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
Standalone Balance Sheet date. 

Transfer of Fund Specified under schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) on other than ongoing 
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance 
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

(b) The Company was obliged to spend Rs. 55,01,098/- under Sec 135 of the Companies act, and same has been 
remain unspent CSR under Sub- section (5) of section 135 of the Companies act, is in relation to ongoing 
project, the unspent amount has been transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said act. 

Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in CARO in consolidated financials. 

The reporting under this clause is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements of the 
Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report. 

For Surana Naveen Vikash & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 323231E 

Naveen Surana 
Partner  
Membership No. 057841 
UDIN: 25057841BMIKFZ4401

Place: Bangalore 

Date: 30th May 2025
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024  As at April 01, 2023 

I ASSETS
Non Current Assets
 a) Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4.1             22,776.55                          6,642.26                                6,775.45                         
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4.2             16.36                                 14,985.67                              5,372.98                         
(c) Investment Property 5                66.65                                 71.01                                     75.82                              
(d) Other Intangible Assets 4.3             39.63                                 35.73                                     40.55                              
(e) Intangible Assets Under Development 4.4             10.30                                 -                                         -                                  
(f) Financial Assets
     (i) Investments 6                70.00                                 70.00                                     70.00                              
    (ii) Other Financial Assets 7                187.21                               148.21                                   111.74                            
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 8                166.90                               36.90                                     -                                  
(h) Other Non Current Assets 9                279.38                               722.44                                   2,330.28                         
Total Non Current Assets 23,612.97                          22,712.22                              14,776.82                       

Current Assets
a) Inventories 10              7,237.10                            5,075.08                                6,031.11                         
b) Financial Assets
    i) Trade receivables 11              8,594.19                            7,670.76                                5,770.25                         
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12              10.46                                 11.31                                     5.12                                
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 13              77.40                                 44.12                                     46.53                              
   iv) Loans 14              -                                     513.68                                   -                                  
   v) Other Financial Assets 15              80.86                                 77.13                                     67.15                              
c) Other Current Assets 16              1,087.25                            322.54                                   773.45                            
Total Current Assets 17,087.25                          13,714.62                              12,693.61                       

TOTAL - ASSETS 40,700.22                          36,426.84                              27,470.43                       

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) EQUITY
a)  Equity share capital 17              2,051.12                            2,051.12                                2,051.12                         
b)  Other Equity 18              9,388.01                            10,019.62                              8,345.45                         

Total Equity 11,439.14                          12,070.75                              10,396.58                       

2) LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    i) Borrowings 19              11,143.67                          12,018.87                              7,556.73                         
    ia) Lease Liabilities 20              847.24                               807.80                                   871.90                            
    ii) Other Financial Liabilities 21              35.07                                 32.84                                     30.75                              
b) Provisions 22              37.25                                 24.72                                     13.48                              
c ) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23              -                                     -                                         8.26                                
d) Other Non Current Liabilities 24              1.93                                   3.86                                       5.78                                

Total Non Current Liabilities 12,065.16                          12,888.08                              8,486.89                         

Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    i) Borrowings 25              10,044.79                          6,019.38                                4,771.66                         
   ii) Lease Liabilities 26              177.85                               161.87                                   109.43                            
   iii) Trade Payables 27              

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise & small enterprise 56.25                                 411.31                                   2.11                                
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro small 
enterprises

5,225.04                            3,625.34                                3,163.26                         
   iv) Other Financial Liabilities 28              0.82                                   0.82                                       0.82                                
b) Other Current Liabilities 29              1,691.17                            1,105.10                                465.61                            
c) Current Tax  Liabilities (Net) 30              -                                     144.19                                   74.06                              

Total Current liabilities 17,195.92                          11,468.01                              8,586.96                         
     Total Liabilities 29,261.08                          24,356.09                              17,073.85                       

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 40,700.22                          36,426.84                              27,470.43                       
Material Accounting Policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                        CEO
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2025 Date : 30 May 2025

As per our report of even date 
FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO

Chartered Accountants

Place : Bangalore      

Firm's Registration No. 323231E

NAVEEN SURANA
Partner

Membership No. 057841
UDIN: 25057841BMIKFZ4401
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at  31st March, 2025

Particulars
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

 Note 
No. 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

I Revenue from operations 31     48,217.82                        37,451.51                       
II Other Income 32     147.89                             102.80                            
III Total Revenue (I +II) 48,365.71                        37,554.31                       

IV Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 33     32,318.50                        26,730.18                       
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-
progress

34     333.07                             112.16                            
Employee benefits expense 35     4,311.90                          2,521.62                         
Finance costs 36     1,610.22                          665.09                            
Depreciation and amortization expense 37     2,906.07                          1,070.02                         
Other expenses 38     7,447.12                          3,915.48                         

Total Expenses 48,926.87                        35,014.54                       
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV) (561.16)                           2,539.77                         
VI Exceptional items
VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V - VI) (561.16)                           2,539.77                         
VIII Tax expense: 39
(1) Current tax -                                   703.73                           
(2) Deferred tax (130.03)                           (46.52)                            
(3) Prior Period tax (4.55)                               (3.48)                              

Total tax expense (134.58)                           653.73                            
IX Profit for the period (VII - VIII) (426.58)                           1,886.03                         

X Other comprehensive income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
   (a) Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 40 0.11                                 (5.39)                              

      (b) Income tax on (a) above 40 (0.03)                               (1.36)                              
B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                   -                                 

Total - Other comprehensive income 0.08                                 (6.75)                              

XI Total comprehensive income for the year  [(IX)+(X)] (426.50)                           1,879.28                         

XII Earning per equity share of Rs 10 each
(1) Basic 41 (2.08)                               9.20                                
(2) Diluted 41 (2.08)                               9.20                                

Material Accounting Policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                        CEO
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2025 Date : 30 May 2025

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

As per our report of even date 
FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 323231E

NAVEEN SURANA
Partner

Membership No. 057841
UDIN: 25057841BMIKFZ4401

Place : Bangalore   
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CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.
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A . Equity Share Capital (Rs. in Lakhs)
 No. of shares Amount

2,05,11,240                       2,051.12                          
-                                     -                                  

2,05,11,240                       2,051.12                          
Changes in equity share capital from 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025 -                                     -                                  

2,05,11,240                       2,051.12                          

 General Reserve  Retained earnings  Security Premium  Other items of OCI  Total Equity 

-                        6,280.88                           2,086.15                           (1.39)                                 8,365.63                          
Prior Period Errors -                        (20.18)                              -                                   -                                    (20.18)                              
Balance as on 01.04.2023 (After prior period errors) -                        6,260.70                           2,086.15                           (1.39)                                 8,345.45                          

-                        1,886.03                           -                                   -                                    1,886.03                          
-                        -                                   -                                   -                                    -                                  
-                        -                                   -                                   (6.75)                                 (6.75)                               
-                        (205.11)                            -                                   -                                    (205.11)                            
-                        1,680.92                           -                                   (6.75)                                 1,674.17                          
-                        7,941.62                           2,086.15                           (8.14)                                 10,019.62                        

 General Reserve  Retained earnings  Security Premium  Other items of OCI  Total Equity 

-                         7,941.62                           2,086.15                           (8.14)                                 10,019.62                        
-                         (426.58)                            -                                   -                                    (426.58)                            

Transfer to General Reserve -                         -                                   -                                   -                                    -                                  
-                         -                                   -                                   0.08                                  0.08                                 

Dividend Paid for 23-24 -                         (205.11)                            -                                   -                                    (205.11)                            
-                         (631.69)                            -                                   0.08                                  (631.61)                            
-                         7,309.93                           2,086.15                           (8.06)                                 9,388.01                          

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
-                                                                                                               

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                        CEO
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2025

Membership No. 057841
UDIN: 25057841BMIKFZ4401

Place : Bangalore   
Date : 30 May 2025

FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 323231E

NAVEEN SURANA
Partner

As per our report of even date 

 Total Comprehensive income for the year 
Balance as on 31.03.2025

Other comprehensive income

Particulars

Balance as on 01.04.2023 (Before prior period errors)

Profit for the year 
Transferred to General Reserve
Other comprehensive income
Dividend Paid for 22-23

 Total Comprehensive income for the year 
Balance as on 31.03.2024

 Particulars 

Balance as on 01.04.2024
Profit for the year

B. Other equity

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Standalone Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

                                   Particulars
Balance as on 01.04.2023
Changes in equity share capital from 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024
Balance as on 01.04.2024

Balance as on 31.03.2025
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Cash Flow from operating activities -                                  -                                  
Profit/(Loss) before tax (561.16)                           2,539.77                          
Adjustments for non-cash items: -                                  -                                  

Depreciation / Amortization 2,906.07                         1,070.02                          
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (14.79)                            (6.78)                              
Finance cost 1,610.22                         665.09                             
Rental Income (67.60)                             (64.47)                             
Interest Income (59.37)                             (21.64)                             
Other Comprehensive Income 0.11                                (5.39)                               

Operating Profit before working capital changes 3,813.47                         4,176.59                          
Movements in working Capital :
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables 1,244.64                         871.28                             
(Decrease) / Increase in other current liabilities 586.07                            639.49                             
(Decrease) / Increase in other non current financial liabilities 2.23                                2.09                                 
(Decrease) / Increase in Non Current Provisions 12.53                              11.24                               
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Non current liabilities (1.93)                               (1.93)                               
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories (2,162.01)                        956.03                             
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables (923.43)                           (1,900.51)                        
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Bank balances (33.28)                             2.41                                 
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial assets (3.73)                               (9.98)                               
Decrease / (Increase) in Other current assets (618.16)                           450.91                             
Decrease / (Increase) in Other non current financial assets (45.09)                             (40.44)                             
Decrease / (Increase) in Other non current assets 443.07                            1,607.83                          
Cash generated from / (used in) Operations 2,314.38                         6,765.01                          
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) 286.19                            630.12                             
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities(A) 2,028.20                         6,134.89                          

Cash Flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (3,863.24)                        (10,439.52)                      
Purchase of Intangible assets (20.10)                             -                                  
Loan to Subsidiary (168.50)                           (513.68)                           
Repayment of loan given to subsidiary 682.18                            -                                  
Sale of Fixed Assets 40.64                              8.15                                 
Interest Income 59.37                              21.64                               
Rental Income 67.60                              64.47                               
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (3,202.06)                        (10,858.94)                      

Cash Flows from financing activities
Increase (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings (875.19)                           4,462.14                          
Increase (Decrease) in Working Capital Borrowings 4,025.41                        1,247.72                         
Dividend paid (205.11)                           (205.11)                           
Principle payment of lease liabilities (161.87)                           (109.43)                           
Interest payment of lease liabilities (70.29)                             (66.92)                             
Finance cost paid (1,539.94)                        (598.17)                           
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C ) 1,173.01                         4,730.23                          

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (0.85)                               6.18                                 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11.31                              5.12                                 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 10.46                              11.31                               

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 10.36                              11.21                               
With Banks 0.10                                0.10                                 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 10.46                              11.31                               

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL NAVEEN SURANA
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                        CEO Partner
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684 Membership No. 057841

UDIN: 25057841BMIKFZ4401

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore   
Date : 30 May 2025 Date : 30 May 2025

FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 323231E

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

As per our report of even date 
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information
B&B Triplewall Containers Limited is a Public Limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India. Its registered office
and principal place of business are situated at SY.NO.263/2/3, Marsur Madivala, Kasaba Hobli, Anekal Taluk, Bengaluru-
562106. The Principal activities of the company are manufacture and sale of corrugated boards & boxes.

2 Basis Of Preparation And Measurement
2.1 Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements (‘financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly
applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

2.2 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the
time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items included in the financial
statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates (the ‘functional currency’).

2.3 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

2.4 Key Accounting Estimates And Judgements
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS
requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and
liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income
and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of investments, useful
lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets and fair value measurement of financial instruments,
these are discussed below. Key sources of estimation of uncertainty in respect of revenue recognition, employee benefits and
provisions and contingent liabilities have been discussed in their respective policies.

Impairment of Financial assets
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is
indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment
may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. 
Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
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2.5 Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA has not notified
any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

3 Material Accounting Policy Information
The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise
indicated.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost comprising of purchase price and any initial directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and
impairment loss, if any.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period
in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 
Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital
work-in-progress”.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written-down-value method based on estimated useful life prescribed
under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction
and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted  prospectively, if appropriate.

3.2 Investment Property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model. The
cost of Investment property includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

3.3 Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are recognised, if the future economic benefits attributable to the assets are expected to flow to the company
and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. The same are amortised over
the expected duration of benefits. Such intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.4 Impairment of Non-financial assets - Tangible and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e.
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-inuse) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.5 Investments
Non current investments include Investments in subsidiary and these are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27”.

3.6 Inventories 
Inventories such as Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods, Stores & Spares, Tools valued at the lower of cost or
net realisable value (except scrap/waste which are value at net realisable value).
The cost is computed on weighted average basis. Finished Goods and Process Stock include cost of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
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3.7 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. The specific recognition criteria described below also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised, when control of goods being sold is transferred to customer and where there
are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in contracts are considered as fulfilled in accordance
with the terms agreed with the respective customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured on transaction price excluding estimates of variable consideration that is
allocated to performance obligations. Sales as disclosed, are exclusive of Goods and Services Tax.

The company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The
transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods to a customer, excluding amount collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes collected on behalf of
government). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed consideration, variable
consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.
The transaction price is allocated by the company to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods to the customer.

Sale of services
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income from investment properties s is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

3.8 Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.
Current and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are
included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest Income, if any, related to Income tax is included in Other
Income.

Current income taxes
Current income tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/loss for the year using applicable tax rates
for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years.
Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid
and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where there is an intention to settle the asset and the
liability on a net basis. 

Deferred income taxes
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the orresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

3.9 Leases
Leases in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments and receipts under such leases are recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease unless the lease payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, in which case the same are recognised as
an expense in line with the contractual term.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership to the lessee.

“Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to
extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the
expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend
or terminate the contract will be exercised. Accordingly, it recognises the Right of use asset as well as Lease obligations
considering the lease agreement”
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4.0 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of
the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use.
Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing  costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.

3.10 Foreign Currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into functional currency at exchange rates in
effect at the balance sheet date, the gain or loss arising from such translations are recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

3.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

3.12 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non - cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.13 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other
than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

3.14 Foreign Currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into functional currency at exchange rates in
effect at the balance sheet date, the gain or loss arising from such translations are recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

3.14 Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund, superannuation
scheme, employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made
as and when services are rendered by the employees. Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain
employees, is made to a government administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the
monthly  contributions.

Defined benefit plans
The Company provides for retirement/post-retirement benefits in the form of gratuity, and compensated absences, in respect
of certain employees. All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date,
made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The classification of the Company’s net obligation into
current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report. 

For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss is the
cost of accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the costs of individual events such as
past/future service benefit changes and settlements (such events are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and
Loss). The amount of net interest expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or asset is charged or credited to ‘Finance costs’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any changes in the liabilities over the
year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised immediately in
‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.15 Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. The
Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. 

A. Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which are recognised at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the
transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are subsequently classified and
measured at - Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. In case of Financial assets which are
recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are
subsequently classified and measued at:

 - amortised cost 
 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
 - fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except during the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

[a] Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are cash, balances with bank and short-term (three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

[b] Trade Receivables and Loans
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash
income through the expected life of financial instrument.

[c] Debt Instruments
Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair
value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

[i] Measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[ii] Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and
collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[iii] Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at
fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other income’
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[d] Equity Instruments:
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Company may,
on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.
The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is
recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument
at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI.
Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the
investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Impairment of Financial Asset
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following:

i. Trade receivables
ii. Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables)
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is
measured and recognized as loss allowance.

In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal
to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an
amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset.
12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months from the
reporting date.

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of
outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables.
The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is
adjusted for forwardlooking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are updated.

ECL allowance recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

B. Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value
through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities
are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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Note: 5
Investment Property

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2024 24.81                        185.68                        210.49                          
Additions During the Year -                           -                              -                               
Deletions during the Year -                           -                              -                               
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2025 24.81                        185.68                        210.49                          

-                           -                              -                               
Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2024 -                           (139.48)                       (139.48)                        
Current Year Depreciation -                           (4.36)                           (4.36)                            
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -                           -                              -                               
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31, 2025 -                           (143.84)                       (143.84)                        

-                           -                              -                               
Net Block as on April 1, 2024 24.81                        46.20                          71.01                            
Net Block as on March 31, 2025 24.81                        41.84                          66.65                            

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2023 24.81                        185.68                        210.49                          
Additions During the Year -                           -                              -                               
Deletions during the Year -                           -                              -                               
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2024 24.81                        185.68                        210.49                          

-                           -                              -                               
Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2023 -                           (134.67)                       (134.67)                        
Current Year Depreciation -                           (4.81)                           (4.81)                            
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -                           -                              -                               
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31, 2024 -                           (139.48)                       (139.48)                        

-                           -                              -                               
Net Block as on April 1,2023 24.81                        51.01                          75.82                            
Net Block as on March 31, 2024 24.81                        46.20                          71.01                            

Notes : 
1) Company’s investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulates impairment losses.
2) Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment properties:

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Rental income derived from Investment properties 67.60                        64.47                          
Less : Direct operating expenses (0.47)                        (0.39)                           
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation 67.13                        64.08                          
Less : Depreciation (4.36)                        (4.81)                           
Profit arising from investment properties 62.77                        59.26                          

The changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the period ended  March 31, 2025  were as follows:

The changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the year ended March 31, 2024  were as follows:

3) As at 31 March 2025, the fair value of investment properties (Above land and building) is Rs.11.82 crores
This valuation is based on sanction letter of bank, which is based on an assessment by an external valuer appointed by the bank; 
and management’s internal estimates considering prevailing market conditions, location, property condition, and other relevant 
factors.
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Note: 6
Investments

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Investment in Equity instruments (Unquoted)
    - In Subsidiary
     i) 7,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each in                                  70.00                                 70.00                               70.00 
                 B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Total Investments 70.00                               70.00                              70.00                            

Note: 7
Other Non Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Security Deposits                                187.21                               148.21                             111.74 

Total Other Non Current Financial Assets 187.21                             148.21                            111.74                          

Note: 8
Deferred tax assets (Net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Related to Disallowances u/s 43B & 40A(7) of Income Tax Act. 1961                                  33.40                                 35.49                                    -   
Related to Property, Plant & Equipments other than Right of Use(ROU)                              (159.31)                               (18.40)                                    -   

Related to Unabsorbed income tax losses                                262.93                                       -                                      -   
Related to ROU, Lease liablities & Other financial assets/liabilities                                  29.87                                 19.81                                    -   

Total Deferred Taxes 166.90                             36.90                              -                                

Note: 9
Other Non Current Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Capital Advances                                278.97                               722.44                          2,330.28 
Prepaid Rent - Non Current Portion                                    0.41                                       -                                      -   

Total Other Non Current Assets 279.38                             722.44                            2,330.28                       

Note: 10
Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
Raw Materials                             4,822.15                            2,899.65                          3,752.42 
Work-in-Progress                                  45.86                               116.56                             182.12 
Finished goods                                713.69                               976.07                          1,022.66 
Stores and Spares, Tools and Others                             1,608.74                            1,066.55                          1,060.91 
Stock of Scrap                                  46.64                                 16.27                               13.00 

Total Inventories 7,237.10                          5,075.08                         6,031.11                       

* On 9th May 2022 company has invested Rs. 70,00,000 in B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED which amounts to 70% holding in said 
company, According to IND AS 27  Company has measured its investment in subsidiary at cost.

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
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Note: 11
Trade receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Trade Receivables- Secured

Trade Receivables- Unsecured
 - 9.1  Considered good
(a)

                           7,251.55 
                              302.91                             413.99 

                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                 47.55                               149.23 
                               132.10                                 33.19                               50.29 

                                50.18                               31.81 
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                                      -                                         -                                      -   
                             (120.74)                           (107.74)
                                      -                                         -                                      -   

Total Trade receivables 8,594.19                          7,670.76                         5,770.25                       

Note: 12
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

                                11.21                                 5.03 
Balances with banks                                       -   -                                  -                                

                                   0.10                                   0.10                                 0.10 
                                      -                                         -                                      -   

Total Cash and bank balance 10.46                               11.31                              5.12                              

Note: 13
Other Bank Balances

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

                                   4.45                                   2.57 
                                 72.95                                 41.55                               10.40 
                                      -                                         -                                      -   

Total Other  bank balances 77.40                               44.12                              46.53                            

Note: 14
Loans

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
                                      -                                      -   

Total Loans -                                   513.68                            -                                

Note: 15
Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

                                 48.80                                 47.57                               37.59 

Total Other Current Financial Assets 80.86                               77.13                              67.15                            

Note: 16
Other Current Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
                            155.81 

                               321.58                               111.58 
                                97.59 

                                      -                                   13.32                                    -   
Total Other Current Assets 1,087.25                          322.54                            773.45                          
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Note: 17

No. of Shares Amount in Rs No. of Shares Amount in Rs No. of Shares Amount in Rs
(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of 10 each with voting rights 2,20,00,000    2,200.00                 2,20,00,000    2,200.00                 2,20,00,000           2,200.00                 
Preference Share Capital of Rs 1000 each 30,000            300.00                    30,000            300.00                    30,000                   300.00                    

Total - Authorised Share Capital 2,20,30,000      2,500.00                  2,20,30,000     2,500.00                  2,20,30,000             2,500.00                  
(b)Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital comprises:
(i) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares of 10 each with voting rights 2,05,11,240    2,051.12                 2,05,11,240    2,051.12                 2,05,11,240           2,051.12                 

(c) Reconciliation statement of Shares Outstanding
Opening Balance 2,05,11,240     2,051.12                 2,05,11,240    2,051.12                 2,05,11,240            2,051.12                 
Additions
(a) Fresh Issue -                   -                          -                  -                          -                          -                          
(b) Bonus Share -                   -                          -                  -                          -                          -                          
(c) Right Share -                   -                          -                  -                          -                          -                          
Deletions -                   -                          -                  -                          -                          -                          
Closing 2,05,11,240      2,051.12                  2,05,11,240     2,051.12                  2,05,11,240             2,051.12                  

(a) Details of share held by each shareholder, holding more than 5% shares
Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

Number of shares 
held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

         22,75,800 11.10%         22,75,800 11.10%                 22,75,800 11.10%
         13,85,600 6.76%         13,85,600 6.76%                 13,85,600 6.76%
         12,07,240 5.89%         12,07,240 5.89%                 12,07,240 5.89%
         12,25,240 5.97%         12,25,240 5.97%                 12,25,240 5.97%
         10,96,920 5.35%         10,96,920 5.35%                 10,96,920 5.35%

(b) Details of Promoters Shareholding
Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

Percentage of 
Change during 
the year

Number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

Number of shares 
held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up:
Manish Kumar Gupta 0.00%          13,85,600 6.76%         13,85,600 6.76%                 13,85,600 6.76%
Nishant Bothra 0.00%          12,25,240 5.97%         12,25,240 5.97%                 12,25,240 5.97%
Sidharth Agarwal 0.00%          10,14,960 4.95%         10,14,960 4.95%                 10,14,960 4.95%
Amit Agarwal 0.00%            8,09,680 3.95%           8,09,680 3.95%                   8,09,680 3.95%
Ravi Agarwal 0.00%            6,49,640 3.17%           6,49,640 3.17%                   6,49,640 3.17%
Alok Agarwal 0.00%            5,76,280 2.81%           5,76,280 2.81%                   5,76,280 2.81%
Manish Bothra 0.00%               58,000 0.28%              58,000 0.28%                      58,000 0.28%

CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.
Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2025

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Share Capital

As at April 01, 2024

(d) The share capital of the company comprises solely of equity shares.  The rights, privileges and restrictions on such shares are those as provided normally under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(e)The company does not have any holding company. Hence, disclosure regarding number of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiary and associates does not arise.

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

As at April 01, 2024

As at April 01, 2024As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up:
Alka Gupta
Manish Kumar Gupta
Jyoti Bothra
Nishant Bothra
Champa Bothra

As at March 31, 2025
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Note: 18
Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Share Premium
Opening Balance                             2,086.15                            2,086.15                          2,086.15 
Less: Utilised/ transferred during the year                                       -                                         -                                      -   

Closing Balance                             2,086.15                            2,086.15                          2,086.15 
                                      -                                         -                                      -   

Retained Earnings                                       -                                         -                                      -   
Opening Balance                             7,941.62                            6,260.70                          4,693.17 
Add: Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year                              (426.58)                            1,886.03                          1,792.82 
Less: Prior Period Error                                       -                                         -                               (20.18)
Dividend Payment                              (205.11)                             (205.11)                           (205.11)

Closing Balance                             7,309.93                            7,941.62                          6,260.70 
                                      -                                         -                                      -   

Other Comprehensive Income                                       -                                         -                                      -   
Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans :                                       -                                         -                                      -   
Opening Balance                                  (8.14)                                 (1.39)                               (7.30)
Add or Less : Transactions during the year                                    0.08                                 (6.75)                                 5.90 

Closing Balance                                  (8.06)                                 (8.14)                               (1.39)
Total Other Equity                             9,388.01                          10,019.62                          8,345.45 

Note: 19
Non Current Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
1.5 % Cumulative Non-Convertible Non-Participating Redeemable 
Preference shares of Rs.1000                                  52.34                                 50.14                               48.07 

                                      -                                         -                                      -   
Secured                                       -   -                                  -                                
Term Loans-                                       -   -                                  -                                
  From Bank**                             5,331.21 6,418.93                         4,227.86                       
  From Other Parties**                                  34.61 50.15                              64.16                            
Unsecured                                       -                                         -                                      -   
Loans and Advances From Related Parties****                                898.50                               898.50                             850.00 
Loans and Advances From Directors****                             1,780.00                            1,552.50                          1,312.50 
Inter-corporate Borrowings***                             3,047.02                            3,048.65                          1,054.15 

Total Non Current Borrowings 11,143.67                        12,018.87                       7,556.73                       

Notes:

The Rate of interest on term loans varies from 8.6% p.a to 13.5% p.a

Interest is payable at the end of each financial year.

** Details of securities given in respect of term loans from banks and its current maturities:

*** Terms & Conditions for Inter Corporate Borrowing

All the term loans from banks are primarily secured by first charge of hypothecation on / mortgage of the assets financed under the respective term 
loans. Besides this, following assets are given as common collateral security for the term loans and short term borrowings from banks, namely, -

First and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets of the Company except the assets exclusively financed by other banks.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at No. 86, KIADB Industrial Area, Bommasandra Jigani Link Road, Bangalore.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at Sy. No. 263 2/3, Marsur Madival Village, Near Attibele Industrial Area, Anekal 
Taluk, Bangalore.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at Sy No. 75 -1A2/1B1 & 73-2A Thyagarasanapalli (Shoolagiri) Hosur Taluk, 
Krishnagiri District, TN .

Leasehold land Plot no B-8, B-12 to B-18 Sipcot Industrial Complex Bargur, Parandapalli Village, Pochampali Taluk, Krishnagiri District Tamil Nadu 
635206.
Personal Guarantee of Promoters / Directors / KMP / Shareholders (Relatives of Directors / KMPs) of the equity shareholding namely Alok 
Agarwal, Amit Agarwal, Manish Bothra, Nishant Bothra, Ravi Agarwal, Sidharth Agarwal, Manish Kumar Gupta.

** Details of security given in respect of term loans and it's current maturities from other parties:
The Company has acquired solar equipment on an Equated Monthly Installment (EMI) basis,. The liability arising from this arrangement has been 
classified under borrowings as above. This facility has been a availed from ORB energy private limited secured by said solar equipment with rate of 
interest 10.5% p.a and repayable in 59 equated monthly installments.

a) Outstanding unsecured inter corporate loan of Rs.3000 Lakhs is from Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd repayable in financial year 2026-27.  Out of which 
Rs. 2000 lakhs carries rate of interest at 11.75% p.a and rest 1000 lakhs carries at 11.25% p.a.

**** Terms & Conditions for Loans & Advances from related parties and directors

* 5,467 1.5 % preference shares have been issued as fully paid up by way of bonus shares without payment being received in cash to the equity 
shareholders of B&B Triplewall Containers Limited (formerly known as B&B Triplewall Containers Private Limited,) as  at January 8, 2016 in terms 
of the scheme of amalgamation ('the Scheme') sanctioned by the High Court of Judicature at Karnataka vide Order dated January 8, 2016. Company 
may redeem these preference shares after the completion of 3 years from the date of issue at it's option. There is no any redemption during the 
current financial year.

b) The remaining outstanding of Rs.47.01 Lakhs inter corporate loan is from Amit Packs Private Limited (related party) which is unsecured and it 
carries rate of interest at 15% p.a.
Interest is payable at the end of each financial year.

Loans and Advances from related parties and directors are repayable after 31st March 2026, These loans carries rate of interest at 15%p.a,
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Note: 20
Non Current Lease Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Lease Liabilities                                847.24                               807.80                             871.90 

Total Non Current Lease Liabilities 847.24                             807.80                            871.90                          

Note: 21
Other Non Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Rental Deposit                                  35.07                                 32.84                               30.75 

Total Non Current Financial Liabilities 35.07                               32.84                              30.75                            

Note: 22
Non Current Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

a) Provision for Employee benefits
Gratuity                                  37.25                                 24.72                               13.48 

Total Non Current Provisions 37.25                               24.72                              13.48                            

Note: 23
Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Related to Disallowances u/s 43B & 40A(7) of Income Tax Act. 1961 -                                                                         -                               (30.51)
Related to Property, Plant & Equipments other than Right of Use(ROU) -                                                                         -                                 46.36 
Related to ROU, Lease liablities & Other financial assets/liabilities -                                                                         -                                 (7.59)

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities -                                   -                                  8.26                              

Note: 24
Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Advance Rent Received                                    1.93                                   3.86                                 5.78 

Total Non Current Provisions 1.93                                 3.86                                5.78                              

Note: 25
Current Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
Secured :
Loans repayable on demand
-   From Bank
   -     Working capital loan*                             6,091.84                            3,424.31                          3,475.56 
 -   From Other Parties**                             2,500.00                            1,000.00                          1,000.00 
Current Maturities of long term debt***                             1,452.95                            1,595.08                             296.11 

                                      -                                         -                                      -   
Total Current Borrowings 10,044.79                        6,019.38                         4,771.66                       

Note:

Note: 26
Current Lease Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
Current maturities of lease liabilities                                177.85                               161.87                             109.43 

Total Current Lease Liabilties 177.85                             161.87                            109.43                          

Common collateral securities are given in respect of the term loans (see Note 18 above on Non-Current Borrowing) and working capital loans from 
banks. Please refer sub-note  under Note 18 above on Long Term Borrowings for details of common collateral securities given in respect of the 
Working Capital Loans From Banks.
These loans carries floating interest rate, 9% linked to repo rate + Spread 2.5% to 10.3% linked to MCLR 1 month + Spread 2.77%.
** Loans from other party is taken from Bajaj Finance Limited (NBFC) which is secured by following assets:
First Pari Passu charge on Present and Future Current Assets of the company, Second Pari Passu charge on Present and Future Fixed Assets of the 
company, Unconditional and irrevocable Personal Guarantee from the Promoters, Demand Promissory note and Letter of Continuity, Personal 
Guarantee of Mr. Manish Gupta, Mr. Ravi Agarwal,  Mr.  Manish Bothra and Mr. Alok Aggarwal.
These loan carries floating interest rate , Present it is 8.8% p.a.
*** Out of total current maturities of long term debt Rs. 1437.40 Lakhs are from banks and remaining 15.55 Lakhs is of current maturity of term loan 
availed from ORB energy Pvt ltd.

* Working Capital Loans from Banks are secured by the following assets:
Hypothecation of all the current assets of the Company comprising, inter alia, of inventories of raw material, work-in-progress and finished goods, 
trade receivables, book debts and other current assets.
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Note: 27
Trade Payables

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

(i) MSME
Less than 1year                                  56.25                               411.31                                 2.11 
1-2 years                                       -                                         -                                      -   
2-3years                                       -                                         -                                      -   
More than 3 years                                       -                                         -                                      -   
(ii) Others                                       -                                         -                                      -   
10.2 (ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

                                      -                                         -                                      -   

Less than 1year                             5,154.10                            3,588.87                          3,116.31 
1-2 years                                  34.68                                 35.84                               46.95 
2-3years                                  35.84                                   0.63                                    -   
More than 3 years                                    0.41                                       -                                      -   

 Total Trade Payables 5,281.29                          4,036.66                         3,165.38                       

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year; 56.25                                411.31                             2.11                               
ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 
MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year; -                                    -                                    -                                 
iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

-                                    -                                    -                                 
iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year; and -                                    -                                    -                                 
v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006. -                                    -                                    -                                 

Note: 28
Other Current Financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Preference Dividend payable                                    0.82                                   0.82                                 0.82 

Total  Other Current Financial Liabilities 0.82                                 0.82                                0.82                              

Note: 29
Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Statutory Dues                                344.64                               270.64                             102.30 
Advance from Customers                                    5.25                                   7.02                               12.18 
Payable for Expenses                             1,211.44                               734.40                             299.43 
Advance Rent Received                                    1.93                                   1.93                                 1.93 
Unpaid Dividend Payable                                    0.40                                   0.19                                 0.02 
Unspent CSR Liability                                127.50                                 90.92                               49.75 

Total Other Current Liabilities                             1,691.17                            1,105.10                             465.61 

Note: 30
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Provision for Taxation                                       -                                 703.73                             651.54 
Less : Advance Income tax (Inc  TDS receivable)                                       -                               (559.54)                           (577.47)

Total Current Tax Liabilities (Net) -                                   144.19                            74.06                            

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006) (“MSMED Act, 2006”):
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Note: 31
Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Sale of Products                          48,202.32                         37,447.74 
Sale of Services                                15.50                                  3.77 

Total 48,217.82                       37,451.51                       

Note: 32
Other Income

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Interest Income                                59.37                                21.64 
Profit on foreign exchange                                  6.12                                  9.90 
Profit on Sale of Assets                                14.79                                  6.78 
Rental Income                                67.60                                64.47 

Total                               147.89                              102.80 

Note: 33
Cost of Raw Material Consumed

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Opening Stock of Raw Material                            2,899.65                           3,752.42 
Add:- Purchases (Net)                          33,556.19                         26,479.49 
Add:- Freight Charges                            1,138.56                              637.25 
Less :-Sale of scrap                             (763.26)                          (1,274.88)
Add:- Custom Duty                               309.51                                35.54 
Less:- Closing Stock of Raw Material                            4,822.15                           2,899.65 

Total 32,318.50                        26,730.18                        

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Imported/Indigenous Consumption
Raw Material Consumed
Imported                            3,701.66                              220.40 
Indigenous                          28,616.83                         26,509.78 

32,318.50                        26,730.18                        

Percentage of total Purchase
Imported 11% 1%
Indigenous 89% 99%

Component, Stores and Spare Consumed
Imported                               174.87                              196.99 
Indigenous                               398.33                              314.68 

573.20                             511.67                             

Percentage of total Purchase
Imported 31% 38%
Indigenous 69% 62%

Note: 34
Changes of inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Opening Inventory
Finished Goods                               976.07                           1,022.66 
Work-in-Progress                               116.56                              182.12 

Closing Inventory
Finished Goods                               713.69                              976.07 
Work-in-Progress                                45.86                              116.56 

Net (Increase)/Decrease 333.07                            112.16                            

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at  31st March 2025
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Note: 35
Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Salaries to Directors                               408.00                              228.00 
Salaries and Wages - Others                            3,282.41                           1,892.06 
Contribution to Provident Fund                               127.43                                87.31 
Contribution to ESI Fund                                23.09                                16.89 
Bonus                               178.94                                85.44 
Leave Encashment                                70.54                                31.11 
Gratuity                                47.64                                35.85 
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses                               173.85                              144.97 

Total 4,311.90                         2,521.62                         

Note: 36
Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

1) Interest Expenses
Bank - on borrowings                               796.10                              164.83 
Others - on borrowings                               717.60                              413.91 
Others - delayed payment of taxes other than IT                                  0.10                                  1.02 
Others - delayed payment of IT                                14.80                                  5.94 
Other borrowing Cost                                78.61                                76.49 

2) Preference Dividend                                  3.02                                  2.89 
Total 1,610.22                         665.09                            

Note: 37
Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment                            2,895.81                           1,059.16 
Depreciation on investment property                                  4.36                                  4.81 
Amortization on intangible assets                                  5.90                                  6.04 

Total 2,906.07                         1,070.02                         
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Note: 38
Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Payment made to Auditors
 As auditors - Statutory Audit & Limited Review                                  5.00                                  4.00 
 As auditors - Tax Audit                                  1.00                                  1.25 

Total (A) 6.00                                5.25                                

Manufacturing Expenses
Consumable Stores & Spares                               573.20                              511.67 
Water Charges                               104.51                                      -   
Die and Sterio Expenses                               242.44                              177.73 
Power and Fuel                            3,474.34                              788.33 
Repairs and maintenance on building                                39.35                                21.73 
Repairs and maintenance on machinery                               203.67                              165.84 
Job Work Expenses                                  1.37                                      -   
Security Service Charges                                97.06                                65.91 

Total (B) 4,735.95                         1,731.22                         

Selling & Distribution Expenses
Sales Promotion Expenses                                  1.46                                  2.46 
CFA Commission & Reimbursements                                90.52                                49.40 
Carriage Outwards                            1,880.72                           1,655.77 
Advertisment expenses                                16.91                                  2.38 

Total (C) 1,989.61                         1,710.02                         

Other Expenses
Rent                               145.97                                60.25 
Rates and Taxes                                68.43                                33.44 
CSR Expenditure                                55.01                                51.74 
Office Expenses                               141.32                                64.78 
Travelling and conveyance                               104.38                              107.22 
Membership & Subscription                                  0.92                                  0.96 
Legal and professional                                62.29                                36.28 
Repair & Maintenance Other                                34.13                                34.02 
Insurance                                60.91                                42.39 
Communication Expenses                                11.55                                13.24 
Printing and Stationery                                23.50                                12.77 
Loss allowance under ECL                                  4.44                                  8.56 
Loss on High Sea Sales                                      -                                    2.74 
Testing Charges                                  2.72                                  0.61 

Total (D)                               715.56                              468.99 
Total (A+B+C+D) 7,447.12                         3,915.48                         

Note: 39
Taxation

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

(i) Profit and Loss section
        Current tax
            - In respect of current period -CT                                      -                                703.73 
            - In respect of prior period - CT                                 (4.55)                                 (3.48)
        Deferred tax
            - In respect of current period -DT                             (130.03)                               (46.52)
            - In respect of prior period - DT                                      -                                        -   
(ii) Other comprehensive income section
      Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
           - Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans                                  0.03                                  1.36 

Total (134.55)                           655.09                            
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Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Profit before income taxes                             (561.16)                           2,539.77 
Enacted tax rates in India 25.17% 25.17%
Computed expected tax expense                             (141.23)                              639.21 
Tax effects on adjustments which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating 
taxable income :
Interest on delayed payment of income taxes & Penalties                                  5.05                                  2.24 
CSR Expenses 13.85                                                             13.02 
Other adjustments                                 (7.69)                                  2.74 
Total impact                                11.20                                18.00 

Current Tax                                      -                                703.73 
Deferred Tax                             (130.03)                               (46.52)

Income tax expense as per P&L (Current + Deferred tax) (130.03)                           657.21                            

Note: 40
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Items that will not be Reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss -
Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans                                  0.11                                 (5.39)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                 (0.03)                                 (1.36)

Total 0.08                                (6.75)                              

Note: 41
Earning Per Share

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
Net profit for the year (426.58)                           1,886.03                         
Nominal value per equity share 10.00 10.00
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,05,11,240                     2,05,11,240                    
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,05,11,240                     2,05,11,240                    
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic earning per share 
& diluted earning per share 2,05,11,240                      2,05,11,240                     
Basic earning per share (2.08)                                9.20                                 
Diluted earning per share (2.08)                                9.20                                 

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income 
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Note: 42

a) Contingent liabilities not provided for :

Name of 
the Statue 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Income Tax 
Act 45.83                                                                         45.83 

Income Tax 
Act 100.49                                                                     100.49 

Name of 
the Statue 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Income Tax 
Act -                                                                             63.93 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
98.71                                     1,831.31                            

Note: 43
Foreign Currency Income & Expenditure

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

3,701.66                                220.40                               
174.87                                   196.99                               

1,049.73                                923.01                               

0.03                                       0.03                                   

Note: 44
Payment To Auditors

2024-25 2023-24
5.00                                       4.00                                   
1.00                                       1.25                                   

Note: 45
Leases
a. Company as a Lessor

2024-25 2023-24
67.60                                     64.47                                 

68.95                                     67.60                                 
59.84                                     128.79                               

-                                         -                                     

b. Company as a Lessee

2024-25 2023-24
912.95                                        969.06                                    
223.39                                        101.73                                    

-                                              -                                         
(202.36)                                       (157.84)                                   
933.98                                        912.95                                    

2024-25 2023-24
969.67                                        981.33                                    
217.29                                        97.77                                      

70.29                                          66.92                                      
-                                              -                                         

(232.15)                                       (176.35)                                   
1,025.09                                     969.67                                    

177.85                                        161.87                                    
847.24                                        807.80                                    

The effective interest rate considered for lease liabilities is 6.80% to 7% , with maturity between 2025-2030.

2024-25 2023-24
202.36                                        157.84                                    

70.29                                          66.92                                      

LEI renewal charges

Payment of Lease Liabilities
Balance as at year end

Particulars
Balance as at year beginning
Additions during the year
Finance cost accrued during the year
Deletions

   -  Later than one year and not later than five years

Particulars
Statutory Audit & Limited Review
Tax Audit

Right of Use Assets - Buildings 

Balance as at Year End

Particulars

Depreciation charge

   -  Not later than one year

iv) The following is the carrying value of lease liability recognized and movements thereof during the year  ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2025.

Income Tax Order(AY 2016-17)
DCIT/ACIT(Rectification Filed u/s 154 on Income Tax Act 
1961)

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at  March 31,2025

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Disputes pending under Income tax Act are as provided below :

Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is Pending

Income Tax Order (AY 2017-18) Commissioner of Income Tax(Appeals)

Income Tax Order(AY 2013-14) High Court of Karnataka

Undisputed demands pending under Income tax Act are as provided below :

Nature of Dues Authority Where it is pending

Expenditure in Foreign Currency :

* The above demand is raised by the income tax department on account of non consideration of TDS and advance tax credit of the enterprise which is merged into the 
company.
The Company has filed application with DCIT/ACIT for rectification order and same has been accepted and demand has been closed.

b) Commitments :
Particulars

Commitments on capital account

Particulars

Value of Imports on CIF Basis in respect of
Raw Materials
Stores, Chemicals and Packing Materials
Capital Goods

Particulars
Lease receipts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Future minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable operating lease

The Company has given building on operating lease. The lease agreement is for a period of 10 years and renewable by mutual consent or mutually agreeable terms and 
1.8 years of lease term is left as on 31st March 2025 . The particulars in respect of such lease is as follows:-

   -  Later than five years

i)  The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of leases for premises (office, factory,  godown, etc.) These leasing arrangements are usually renewable 
by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.

Current maturities of Lease Liability
Non-Current Lease Liability

ii)The Company also has certain leases of buildings with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these 
leases.
iii) Following is carrying value of right of use assets recognized and movements thereof during the year ended  31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2025.

Balance as at year Beginning 
Additions
Deletions

v)  Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the year

Particulars
 Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets -Building
 Finance cost accrued during the year (included in finance cost)
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Note: 46

Information about products and services

Information about major customers

Note: 47

S.No Nature Of 
Relationship

Amount of loan or 
advance in the nature 
of loan outstanding

Percentage to 
the total Loans 
and Advances 

in the nature of 
loans

Amount of loan or 
advance in the nature of 
loan outstanding

Percentage to the total 
Loans and Advances in 

the nature of loans

1
Subsidiary 
Company -                                  0.00% 513.68                                    100.00%

Note: 48
Comparative statement of of Quarterly returns of Current Asset  submitted to the bank in relation to books of accounts

Particulars   Books 
 Statement  to 
bank  Variance(Rs.)  Period 

Debtors                     7,490.48                 7,492.57                      (2.09) QTR-1

Inventory                     5,873.09                 5,873.09                           -   QTR-1

Debtors                     7,200.60                 7,225.08                    (24.48) QTR-2

Inventory                     6,557.51                 6,557.51                           -   QTR-2

Debtors                     6,959.49                 6,961.92                      (2.43) QTR-3

Inventory                     6,512.14                 6,512.14                           -   QTR-3

Debtors                     8,714.93                 8,745.42                    (30.49) QTR-4

Inventory                     7,237.10                 6,566.27                   670.82 QTR-4

Reason for Difference in Inventory Value:

Note: 49
Corporate Social Responsibility
Sl.No 2024-25 2023-24

1 55.01                                     51.74                                 
2 Amount of expenditure incurred -                                         -                                     
3 Shortfall at the end of the year 55.01                                     51.74                                 
4 Total of previous years shortfall 72.49                                     39.19                                 

5 Reason for shortfall

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent CSR 
account and same will be 
expended  in Rural 
Development over a period 
of time.

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent 
CSR account and same 
will be expended  in 
Rural Development over 
a period of time.

6  Rural Development  Rural Development 

7 NA NA

8 NA NA

Note: 50

Note: 51

Note: 52

Note: 53
The Company has classified certain class of security deposits such as electricity, telephone, and other similar deposits as non-current financial assets, as they are
refundable only upon discontinuation of the related services and are not expected to be realized within 12 months from the reporting date.
In accordance with Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments (Para 5.1.1 and B5.1.1), financial assets are initially measured at fair value. However, in this case, the difference
between the transaction value and fair value is not considered material due to the nature, amount, and expected duration of these deposits. Accordingly, the deposits
have been measured at transaction value.

On review of operations, it is identified that the company has only one segment.

Ind AS-108  Operating Segments
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating
officer i.e. Managing director of the company. 

B&B Triplewall Containers Limited manufactures and supplies paper container packaging products. The Company offers corrugated box, boards, and sheets.

Above 10% sales or purchases to one person
There are two companies from which the company earns more than 10% of its revenue.

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013.)
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Pariculars

Name of Borrower

B And B Colour Cartons Private 
Limited

Reason for Difference in Debtors Value: The Debtors /Creditors has been reclassified /Regrouped during the year, Which was not considered in the statement 
submitted to bank.

The reason for difference in inventory value in Q4 is on account of Stock in transit which was not considered in the statement submitted to bank.

Balances in parties’ accounts are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the In-direct Method prescribed in Indian Accounting Standard– 7 issued under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

There is no impairment to assets as per Indian Accounting Standard 36 issued by Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2014. Consequently, there is no impairment
loss debited to Profit and Loss account.

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

Nature of CSR activities
Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in 
relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard.

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual 
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately
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Note: 55
Related Parties Disclosures
As per IND AS 24 , the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

SI NO Relationship
1 Director
2 KMP
3 Director
4 Director
5 KMP
6 Director
7 KMP
8 Relatives of Director
9 Relatives of Director

10 Director is Karta
11 KMP IS KARTA
12 Relatives of Director
13 Relatives of Director
14 Relatives of Director
15 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
16 Director is Karta
17 Relatives of Director
18 Relatives of Director
19 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
20 Relatives of Director
21 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
22 Relatives of Director
23 Relatives of Director
24 Relatives of Director
25 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
26 KMP IS KARTA
27 Relatives of Director
28 Director is Karta
29 Relatives of Director
30 KMP IS KARTA
31 Relatives of Director
32 Relatives of Director
33
34
35
36
37 SINGLA PACKAGING
38 Subsidiary Company

Disclosure of transactions with related parties

SI NO 2024-25 2023-24
1

267.50                           358.50                                         
Alok Agarwal 40.00                            13.50                                          
Manish Bothra -                                40.00                                          
Manish Kumar Gupta 167.00                          291.00                                        
Ravi Agarwal 60.50                            14.00                                          

-                                 7.50                                             
-                                7.50                                            

2

40.00                             70.00                                           
Alok Agarwal 40.00                            -                                             
Manish Bothra -                                70.00                                          

1.63                               13.00                                           
1.63                              13.00                                          

3

Subsidiary: 168.50                           513.68                                         
B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 168.50                          513.68                                        

4

Subsidiary: 682.18                           -                                              
B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 682.18                          -                                             

NISHANT BOTHRA
RAVI AGARWAL
SIDHARTH AGARWAL
AARTI AGARWAL
ALKA GUPTA
ALOK AGARWAL HUF

NAVAL AGARWAL
NAVAL AGARWAL HUF
NEELAM AGARWAL

B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Particulars
Loan Accepted

Directors :

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:
Amit Packs Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at  March 31, 2025

Name of Related Parties
ALOK AGARWAL
AMIT AGARWAL
MANISH BOTHRA
MANISH KUMAR GUPTA

MEERA GUPTA
MOHANLAL AGARWAL
MOHANLAL AGARWAL HUF

AMIT AGARWAL HUF
CHAMPA BOTHRA
JYOTI BOTHRA
KAMAKHYA PRASAD AGARWAL
KAMAKHYA PRASAD AGARWAL HUF
MANISH BOTHRA HUF

 Enterprises over which 
Directors
have significant influence 

KAUSHIK PRODUCTS
RD INDUSTRIES
SAPTHAGIRI PACKAGING

NEHA AGARWAL
NIDHI AGARWAL
NIRMAL KUMAR BOTHRA HUF
NISHANT BOTHRA HUF
RANJANA DEVI AGARWAL
RAVI AGARWAL HUF
RITU AGARWAL
SIDHARTH AGARWAL HUF
SWATI BOTHRA
VIDYA DEVI AGARWAL
AMIT PACKS PRIVATE LIMITED

Loan Repaid

Director :

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:
Amit Packs Private Limited

Loan Given repaid

Loan Given
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5

Director : 206.31                           226.86                                         
Alok Agarwal 10.96                            14.40                                          
Ravi Agarwal 28.78                            29.04                                          
Manish Bothra 13.92                            16.92                                          
Manish Kumar Gupta 152.65                          166.50                                        

KMP : 5.82                               7.28                                             
Amit Agarwal 1.08                              1.35                                            
Nishant Bothra 0.72                              0.90                                            
Sidharth Agarwal 4.02                              5.03                                            

KMP Is Karta: 12.52                             15.65                                           
Amit Agarwal Huf 2.48                              3.10                                            
Nishant Bothra Huf 9.60                              12.00                                          
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 0.44                              0.55                                            

Director is Karta: 17.76                             22.20                                           
Alok Agarwal Huf 1.92                              2.40                                            
Manish Bothra Huf 12.96                            16.20                                          
Ravi Agarwal Huf 2.88                              3.60                                            

Relatives of Director: 52.20                             65.25                                           
Aarti Agarwal 0.54                              0.68                                            
Alka Gupta 12.15                            15.19                                          
Champa Bothra 12.36                            15.45                                          
Jyoti Bothra 3.30                              4.13                                            
Meera Gupta 10.40                            13.01                                          
Mohanlal Agarwal 0.66                              0.83                                            
Neha Agarwal 0.72                              0.90                                            
Nidhi Agarwal 0.82                              1.02                                            
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 6.44                              8.06                                            
Ritu Agarwal 1.08                              1.35                                            
Swati Bothra 2.34                              2.93                                            
Vidya Devi Agarwal 1.38                              1.73                                            

Relative of Director is Karta: 19.52                             24.41                                           
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 3.74                              4.68                                            
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 3.96                              4.95                                            
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 11.82                            14.78                                          

5.77                               8.27                                             
Amit Packs Private Limited 5.77                              8.27                                            

6

KMP: 252.00                           144.00                                         
Amit Agarwal 84.00                            48.00                                          
Nishant Bothra 84.00                            48.00                                          
Sidharth Agarwal 84.00                            48.00                                          

Directors: 408.00                           228.00                                         
Alok Agarwal 84.00                            48.00                                          
Ravi Agarwal 84.00                            48.00                                          
Manish Bothra 84.00                            48.00                                          
Manish Kumar Gupta 156.00                          84.00                                          

7

(297.85)                          (184.99)                                       
(5.96)                             (25.98)                                        

(62.20)                           (27.90)                                        
(167.98)                         (120.33)                                      

(61.71)                           (10.79)                                        

Subsidiary:
-                                 (0.69)                                           

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited -                                 (0.69)                                          

206.21                           30.28                                           
-                                2.49                                            

196.73                          9.85                                            
3.86                              10.88                                          
5.62                              7.06                                            

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Remuneration

Outstanding (receivable )/payable as at year end
Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries

Interest Expenses

Singla Packaging

Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
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8

47.02                             48.65                                           
47.02                            48.65                                          

Directors: 1,780.00                        1,552.50                                      
96.00                            96.00                                          

116.00                          116.00                                        
1,312.00                       1,145.00                                     

256.00                          195.50                                        

Director Is Karta: 148.00                           148.00                                         
Alok Agarwal Huf 16.00                            16.00                                          
Manish Bothra Huf 108.00                          108.00                                        
Ravi Agarwal Huf 24.00                            24.00                                          

KMP: 48.50                             48.50                                           
Amit Agarwal 9.00                              9.00                                            
Nishant Bothra 6.00                              6.00                                            
Sidharth Agarwal 33.50                            33.50                                          

KMP Is Karta: 104.30                           104.30                                         
Amit Agarwal Huf 20.65                            20.65                                          
Nishant Bothra Huf 80.00                            80.00                                          
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 3.65                              3.65                                            

Relatives of Director: 435.00                           435.00                                         
Aarti Agarwal 4.54                              4.54                                            
Alka Gupta 101.25                          101.25                                        
Champa Bothra 103.00                          103.00                                        
Jyoti Bothra 27.50                            27.50                                          
Meera Gupta 86.71                            86.71                                          
Mohanlal Agarwal 5.50                              5.50                                            
Neha Agarwal 6.00                              6.00                                            
Nidhi Agarwal 6.80                              6.80                                            
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 53.70                            53.70                                          
Ritu Agarwal 9.00                              9.00                                            
Swati Bothra 19.50                            19.50                                          
Vidya Devi Agarwal 11.50                            11.50                                          

Relative of Director Is Karta: 162.70                           162.70                                         
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 31.20                            31.20                                          
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 33.00                            33.00                                          
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 98.50                            98.50                                          

9

5.19                               7.44                                             
5.19                              7.44                                            

Directors: 185.68                           204.17                                         
9.87                              12.96                                          

12.53                            15.22                                          
137.38                          149.85                                        

25.90                            26.14                                          

Director Is Karta: 15.98                             19.98                                           
Alok Agarwal Huf 1.73                              2.16                                            
Manish Bothra Huf 11.66                            14.58                                          
Ravi Agarwal Huf 2.59                              3.24                                            

KMP: 5.24                               6.55                                             
Amit Agarwal 0.97                              1.22                                            
Nishant Bothra 0.65                              0.81                                            
Sidharth Agarwal 3.62                              4.52                                            

KMP Is Karta: 11.26                             14.08                                           
Amit Agarwal Huf 2.23                              2.79                                            
Nishant Bothra Huf 8.64                              10.80                                          
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 0.39                              0.49                                            

Loans outstanding at the year end

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Amit Packs Private Limited

Alok Agarwal
Manish Bothra

Manish Kumar Gupta
Ravi Agarwal

Manish Kumar Gupta
Ravi Agarwal

Interest on loan outstanding at the year end

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
Amit Packs Private Limited

Alok Agarwal
Manish Bothra
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Relatives of Director: 46.98                             58.72                                           
Aarti Agarwal 0.49                              0.61                                            
Alka Gupta 10.94                            13.67                                          
Champa Bothra 11.12                            13.91                                          
Jyoti Bothra 2.97                              3.71                                            
Meera Gupta 9.36                              11.71                                          
Mohanlal Agarwal 0.59                              0.74                                            
Neha Agarwal 0.65                              0.81                                            
Nidhi Agarwal 0.73                              0.92                                            
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 5.80                              7.25                                            
Ritu Agarwal 0.97                              1.22                                            
Swati Bothra 2.11                              2.63                                            
Vidya Devi Agarwal 1.24                              1.55                                            

Relative of Director Is Karta: 17.57                             21.96                                           
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 3.37                              4.21                                            
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 3.56                              4.46                                            
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 10.64                            13.30                                          

10
-                                 513.68                                         

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited -                                513.68                                        

11
-                                 13.32                                           

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited -                                13.32                                          

12

5,220.65                        3,271.58                                      
753.09                          805.51                                        

1,162.60                       822.83                                        
2,352.00                       969.88                                        

952.96                          673.35                                        

364.05                           228.41                                         
B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 364.05                          228.41                                        

13 3.23                               -                                              
-                                 -                                              

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 3.23                              -                                             

14 Sale of Capital goods (In nature of Capital Work in Progress) 0.59                               -                                              
-                                 -                                              

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 0.59                              -                                             

15

488.33                           536.29                                         
5.82                              40.82                                          

339.39                          178.54                                        
96.41                            218.37                                        
46.71                            98.56                                          

315.43                           205.79                                         
B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 315.43                          205.79                                        

16 Reimbursement of Carriage Inward Expense
0.38                               -                                              

B And B Colour Cartons Private Limited 0.38                              -                                             

17 Rent Paid
33.49                             31.89                                           

Jyoti Bothra 5.58                              5.32                                            
8.01                              7.63                                            
4.86                              4.63                                            
5.58                              5.32                                            

Aarti Agarwal 6.30                              6.00                                            
Ritu Agarwal 3.15                              3.00                                            

11.16                             10.63                                           
Singla Packaging 11.16                            10.63                                          

18 Interest income:
51.97                             14.80                                           

B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED 51.97                            14.80                                          

19
Investment

Subsidiary: 70.00                             70.00                                           
B AND B COLOUR CARTONS PRIVATE LIMITED 70.00                            70.00                                          

Subsidiary:

Subsidiary:

Subsidiary:

Loans given outstanding at the year end

Interest on Loans given receivable at the year end

Sales

Reimbursement of Carriage Outward Expense

Subsidiary:

Subsidiary:

Subsidiary:

Neha Agarwal
Nidhi Agarwal
Swati Bothra

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 

Subsidiary:

Subsidiary:

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging

Relative of Director:

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging

Purchases
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Note: 56

[i] Changes in the Present Value of Obligation

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:                                  -                                  -   
    - change in financial assumptions                            13.53                             5.13 

    - experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)                          (13.04)                             0.03 

Benefits Paid
Present Value of Obligation as at the end

[ii] Change in Fair value of plan assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning
Investment Income
Employer's Contributions
Benefits Paid
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end

[iii] Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Current Liability (Short term)
Non-Current Liability (Long term) 37.25                         
Present Value of Obligation(Net Liability)

[iv] Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Current Service Cost
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit 
Liability / (Asset)
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

[v] Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year

Actuarial (gains) / losses
    - change in demographic assumptions
   - change in financial assumptions
   - experience Variance (i.e. ACTUAL experience vs 
assumptions.                          (13.04)

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income

(vi) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date :

Discount rate (per annum)

Salary growth rate (per annum)

(vii) Gratuity - As per actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2024

Actuarial Assumptions
Mortality rate
Normal retirement age
Attrition / Withdrawal rates (per annum)

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2025

Employee benefit plans 
1. Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

In accordance with Indian law, the Company operates a scheme of gratuity which is a defined benefit plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30
days’ salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service. The Company
manages the plan through a trust. The following table sets out the details of the defined benefit retirement plans and the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Particulars
For the period ending

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                                (6.47)                                                                (8.07)
                                                              225.10                                                             172.86 

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                              172.86                                                             131.29 
                                                                45.87                                                                 9.60 
                                                                12.35                                                               34.86 

                                                                (6.47)                                                                (8.07)

                                                                  0.60                                                                (0.23)

                                                              187.85                                                             148.14 

                                                              148.14                                                             117.81 
                                                                10.58                                                                 8.62 
                                                                35.00                                                               30.00 

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                                     -                                                                       -   

                                                                45.87                                                               34.86 

                                                                  1.77                                                                 0.99 

                                                                47.64                                                               35.85 

                                                              24.72 
                                                                37.25                                                               24.72 

                                                                     -                                                                       -   
                                                                13.53                                                                 5.13 

                                                                0.03 

                                                                (0.60)                                                                 0.23 

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

6.50% 7.15%
10.00% for the first 3 years, and 7.00% 

thereafter
10.00% for the first 3 years, and 7.00% 

thereafter

Particulars As on
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                                (0.11)                                                                 5.39 

Particulars As on
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

15.00% 15.00%

100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14
58 Years 58 Years
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(viii) Summary of Membership Status

Number of employees
Total monthly salary (Rs.)
Average past service (years)
Average age (years)
Average remaining working life (years)
Number of completed years valued
Expected remaining working life (years)

(ix) Sensitivity Analysis

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (- / + 1%)                                                              (% 

change compared to base due to sensitivity)
 240.33
6.8% 

211.50
-6.0%  184.11             6.5% 

162.79                                  
-5.8%

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)                                                                          
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

211.58
-6.0%

239.94
6.6%

162.80                                                                                                                                                                     
-5.8%

183.89                               
6.4%

Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

240.97
7.0%

213.51
-5.2%

179.33                        
3.7%

166.66                                         
-3.6%

Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

225.10
0.0%

225.10
0.0%

172.85                          
0.0%

172.86                                  
0.0%

Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

2.  Defined contribution plans:

Particulars As on
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                                30.43                                                               29.72 
                                                                27.60                                                               28.30 
                                                                1,856                                                               1,540 

                                                                   725                                                                  605 
                                                              129.45                                                             104.81 
                                                                  2.56                                                                 2.55 

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. For change in assumptions please refer below where assumptions for prior
period, if applicable, are given.

The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. It is based on the yields / rates available on
applicable bonds as on the current valuation date.

The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in future years, determined
considering the general trend in inflation, senority, promotions, past experience and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in
employment market, etc.

Attrition rate indicated above represents the Company's best estimate of employee turnover in future (other than on account of retirement, death
or disablement) determined considering various factors such as nature of business, retention policy, industry factors, past experience, etc.

The assumptions used in this Report, other than the rates of mortality, are the expectations of the Company for future years. The Company
acknowledges that it has been advised to consider the relevant factors (including historical trends, which may or may not be suitable for future
projections or may be suitable only after certain adjustments / modifications) in determination of assumptions.

                                                                  5.87                                                                 5.88 

Particulars
As on

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Significant actuarial assumptions for the detemination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality.
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars As on
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

225.10 172.86

Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to
the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to
time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20 Lakhs).

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration of the liabilty is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to
market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

A sum of Rs.  150.52 Lakhs has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of Company’s contribution to  provident fund and 
employees state insurance.

The Company has also been advised on the sensitivity of results to change in the chosen assumptions and experience variance / adjustments, Since
it is the Company's prerogative to decide on expected future trends and since the Company is best aware of the various factors affecting the future
trends, the assumptions given by the Company have been accepted.

Risk analysis
Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary over time. Thus,
the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate
cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availabilty of
enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants
in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present
value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liabilty.
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Note: 57

 Financial instruments 

Particulars  Amortised cost  Financial assets / liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss  Total carrying value 

ASSETS
Non Current
    (i) Investments 70.00                                             -                                                         70.00                                                        
    (ii) Security Deposits 187.21                                           -                                                         187.21                                                      

Current 
    i) Trade receivables 8,594.19                                        -                                                         8,594.19                                                   
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10.46                                             -                                                         10.46                                                        
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 77.40                                             -                                                         77.40                                                        
   iv) Loans -                                                 -                                                         -                                                           
   v) Other Financial Assets 80.86                                             -                                                         80.86                                                        

-                                                           
-                                                           

Total 9,020.11                                        -                                                         9,020.11                                                   

LIABILITES
Non Current
    i) Borrowings 11,143.67                                      -                                                         11,143.67                                                
    ia) Lease Liabilities 847.24                                           -                                                         847.24                                                      
    ii) Other Financial Liabilities 35.07                                             -                                                         35.07                                                        
Current 
    i) Borrowings 10,044.79                                      -                                                         10,044.79                                                
   ii) Lease Liabilities 177.85                                           -                                                         177.85                                                      
   iii) Trade Payables 5,281.29                                        -                                                         5,281.29                                                   
   iv) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                               -                                                         0.82                                                          

Total 27,530.73                                      -                                                         27,530.73                                                

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024 are as follows :

Particulars  Amortised cost  Financial assets / liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss  Total carrying value 

ASSETS
Non Current
    (i) Investments 70.00                                             -                                                         70.00                                                        
    (iii) Security Deposits 148.21                                           -                                                         148.21                                                      

Current 
    i) Trade receivables 7,670.76                                        -                                                         7,670.76                                                   
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11.31                                             -                                                         11.31                                                        
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 44.12                                             -                                                         44.12                                                        
   iv) Loans 513.68                                           -                                                         513.68                                                      
   v) Other Financial Assets 77.13                                             -                                                         77.13                                                        

Total 8,535.21                                        -                                                         8,535.21                                                   

LIABILITES
Non Current
    i) Borrowings 12,018.87                                      -                                                         12,018.87                                                
    ia) Lease Liabilities 807.80                                           -                                                         807.80                                                      
    ii) Other Financial Liabilities 32.84                                             -                                                         32.84                                                        

Current 
    i) Borrowings 6,019.38                                        -                                                         6,019.38                                                   
   ii) Lease Liabilities 161.87                                           -                                                         161.87                                                      
   iii) Trade Payables 4,036.66                                        -                                                         4,036.66                                                   
   iv) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                               -                                                         0.82                                                          

Total 23,078.23                                      -                                                         23,078.23                                                

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost :

Note: 58
Financial Risk Management 

a) Credit Risk

Financial instruments by category

 The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2025 are as follows : 

The management believes that the fair values of non-current financial assets (e.g. loans and others),current financial assets (e.g., cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, loans and others excluding other derivative assets) and current financial liabilities (e.g. trade payables and other payables excluding derivative liabilities)
approximate their carrying amounts.

The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of Financial risks from its operations. The Key financial risks include Credit Risk, Market Risk and Liquidity Risk.
The Company also uses derivative instruments on selective basis prudently to manage the volatility of financial markets and minismise the adverse impact on its
foinancial Performance in accordance Risk Management Policy Framework.

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or pay the amounts due causing financial loss to the company. The
company is exposed  to credit risk from its operating activities primarily arising from trade recerivables from customers and other financial instruments.

Customer Credit risk is managed as per the Company's established policy, procedures and control framework relating to customer credit risk management. The
company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties taking into account their financial position and credit worthiness, the age of specific receivable balance and
the current and expected collection trends, age of its contracts in progress, historically observed default over the expected life of trade receivables. Credit risk is also
actively managed to the extent feasible by securing payment through letter of credit, advance payment and bill discounting facility. The Company's exposure (
unsecured trade receivables ) and credit ratings of its counter parties are continously monitored and assessed while ensuring that the aggregate value of the
transaction is reasonably spread amongst counterparties. The company uses the expected credit loss model to assess the impairement allowance on trade receivables,
if any on the reporting date and accordingly applied the same for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables.
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31st March 2025 31st March 2024

                                                  8,594.19                                                     7,670.76 

                                                    (116.30)                                                       (107.74)
                                                        (4.44)                                                           (8.56)
                                                             -                                                                  -   
                                                    (120.74)                                                       (116.30)

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Sensitivity on USD import exposure 1% Increase (0.71)                                                      (0.08)                                                        
Sensitivity on USD import exposure 1% Decrease 0.71                                                        0.08                                                          
Sensitivity on EUR import exposure 1% Increase -                                                         0.70                                                          
Sensitivity on EUR import exposure 1% Decrease -                                                         (0.70)                                                        
Sensitivity on CHF import exposure 1% Increase (0.04)                                                      0.00                                                          
Sensitivity on CHF import exposure 1% Decrease 0.04                                                        (0.00)                                                        

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Borrowings from banks & other financial institutions 100 basis points increase (138.92)                                                  (105.64)                                                    
Borrowings from banks & other financial institutions 100 basis points decrease 138.92                                                    105.64                                                      

Not Later than 1 year More than 1 year
    i) Borrowings 10,044.79                                              11,143.67                                                
    ia) Lease Liabilities 177.85                                                    847.24                                                      
   ii) Trade Payables 5,281.29                                                -                                                           
    iii) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                                        35.07                                                        

Not Later than 1 year More than 1 year
    i) Borrowings 6,019.38                                                12,018.87                                                
    ia) Lease Liabilities 161.87                                                    807.80                                                      
   ii) Trade Payables 4,036.66                                                -                                                           
    iii) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                                        -                                                           

Note: 59
Capital Management

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
21,188.46                                              18,038.25                                                

(10.46)                                                    (11.31)                                                      
(77.40)                                                    (44.12)                                                      

21,100.61                                              17,982.82                                                
11,439.14                                              12,070.75                                                

1.84                                                        1.49                                                          

Exposure to credit risks

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, The company has recognized 'nil' impairment loss on all financial assets except for trade receivables above.

Particulars

Particulars

Provided during the year
Amounts written-off
Closing allowance

c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises from the Company's inability to meet its financial obligations in a timely manner. The Company manages this risk through regular monitoring of
cash flows and maintaining sufficient undrawn working capital facilities. The Company does not use hedging instruments for liquidity risk but relies on operational
cash flow and sanctioned credit lines.

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities as on 31st March 2025

The Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings at variable rates linked to market benchmarks . As of the reporting date, the Company has not
entered into any interest rate swaps or derivative contracts to hedge its exposure.

Management regularly monitors interest rate movements and evaluates borrowing structures. Based on current interest rate trends and the size of borrowings, the
Company has assessed that the risk is acceptable and has opted not to hedge.

    Sensivity analysis:

Particulars % Change Impact on Profit Before Tax - Increase /(Decrease)

Particulars

Particulars
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life- time
Expected Credit Losses (LECL)
Trade receivables
Summary of change in loss allowances measured using LECL
Opening allowance

Net Debt to Equity ratio

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities as on 31st March 2024

The Company's primary objective with respect to capital management is to ensure continuity of business and support the growth of the Company while at the same
time provide reasonable returns to its various stakeholders and maximise shareholders value. In order to achieve these objectives, requirement of capital is reviewed
periodically with reference to operating and business plans that take into account capital expenditure and strategic investments. Sourcing of capital is done through
judicious combination of equity/ internal accruals and borrowings, both short term and long term. The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the
Board of Directors and the Company monitors capital by applying net debt (total borrowings less investments and cash and cash equivalents) to equity ratio. The
Company manages its capital structure and make adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of financial covenants attached to
the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year ended 31st March, 2025 or corresponding previous year.

Particulars
Debt
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents
          Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Net Debt
Total Equity

% Change Impact on Profit Before Tax - Increase /(Decrease)

  ii) Interest rate risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

  i) Foreign Exchange Risk 
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily on account of import payables denominated in different currencies as given below. As of the reporting
date, the Company has not entered into any forward contracts or derivative instruments to hedge its foreign currency exposure.
The Company monitors exchange rate movements and evaluates its foreign currency exposure regularly. However, it currently follows a natural hedging approach,
relying on short credit cycles and internal risk assessments rather than active hedging.

    Sensivity analysis:

b) Market Risk
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Note: 61
Regrouping & Reclassification

Note: 62
Other Statutory Information

e) The Company does not have any transaction with struck-off companies.

i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Note: 63
Other discosures

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of As per our report of even date 
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 323231E

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL NAVEEN SURANA
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                        CEO Partner
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684 Membership No. 057841

UDIN: 25057841BMIKFZ4401

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2025 Date : 30 May 2025

g) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities(intermediaries), with the
understanding that the intermediary shall;

The previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to facilitate comparison with current year’s figures.

a) The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financials statements included under Property Plant and Equipment (Excluding right of
use assets) and Investment Properties are held in the name of the company as at the balance sheet date.
b) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including, right to use the asset) or intangible asset or both during the year.
c)The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.
d) The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a willful defaulter at any time during the
financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when the financial statements are approved.

f) The Company does not have any charge or satisfaction of charge which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory
period.

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries), or
   - Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
h) The Company does not have any transactions which are not recorded in the books of account but has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

a) As per the MCA notification dated August 05, 2022, Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules 2022. The books of accounts along with other
relevant records and papers of the companies are currently maintained in the electronic mode. These are readily accesible in india at all times and backup is
maintained on servers located in india, on daily basis.

c) The disclosures under additional reporting requirements, which are not applicable to the company are not disclosed in the current year financial
statements.

b) The company is using accounting software that has an audit trail feature. The audit trail has been operated throughout the year for all transactions
recorded in the books of account and has not been tampered with. The audit trail has been preserved as per the statutory requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s. B&B TRIPLEWALL 
CONTAINERS LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary together referred to as ‘the Group’), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, notes to the consolidated financial statements including material accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and on 
the other financial information of the subsidiaries the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other 
Accounting Principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at 
31 March 2025, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash 
flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its joint venture in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.  

A) Provisions for taxation, litigation, and other significant provisions

Accrual for tax and other contingencies requires the Management to make judgements and estimates in 
relation to the issues and exposures arising from a range of matters relating to direct tax, indirect tax, transfer 
pricing arrangements, claims, general legal proceedings, environmental issues, and other eventualities arising in 
the regular course of business.

The key judgement lies in the estimation of provisions where they may differ from the future obligations. 
By nature, provision is difficult to estimate and includes many variables. Additionally, depending on timing, 
there is a risk that costs could be provided inappropriately that are not yet committed.

How the matter was addressed in Our audit procedures included:

We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recognition of provisions.

We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material provisions in light of the nature of the 
exposures, applicable regulations, and related correspondence with the authorities.

 We challenged the assumptions and critical judgements made by management which impacted their 
estimate of the provisions required, considering judgements previously made by the authorities in the relevant 
jurisdictions or any relevant opinions given by the Company’s advisors and assessing whether there was an 
indication of management bias.
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We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the Company’s internal tax and legal 
team.

We performed retrospective review of management judgements relating to accounting estimate included 
in the financial statement of prior year and compared with the outcome.

B)  Assessment of contingent liabilities relating to litigations and claims

The Company is periodically subject to challenges / scrutiny on range of matters relating to direct tax, 
indirect tax, and transfer pricing arrangements.

Further, potential exposures may also arise from general legal proceedings, environmental issues etc. in the 
normal course of business.

Assessment of contingent liabilities disclosure requires Management to make judgements and estimates in 
relation to the issues and exposures. Whether the liability is inherently uncertain, the amounts involved are 
potentially significant and the application of accounting standards to determine the amount, if any, to be 
provided as liability, is inherently subjective.

How the matter was addressed in our audit procedures included:

We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recording and re-assessment of contingent liabilities.

We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material contingent liabilities in light of the 
nature of exposures, applicable regulations, and related correspondence with the authorities.

We discussed the status and potential exposures in respect of significant litigation and claims with the 
Company’s internal legal team including their views on the likely outcome of each litigation and claim and the 
magnitude of potential exposure and sighted any relevant opinions given by the Company’s advisors.

We assessed the adequacy of disclosures made.

We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the Company’s internal tax and legal 
team.

We performed retrospective review of management judgements relating to accounting estimate included 
in the financial statement of prior year and compared with the outcome.

Information Other than the consolidated financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Report 
on Corporate Governance, Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report and the Directors’ Report, but 
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these  consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the  
financial position,  financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring accuracy of 
records including financial information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements. Further, in terms of the provisions of the Act the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group, and its joint venture company covered under the Act are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
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effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These financial statements have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the 
companies included in the Group and of its joint venture. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act  we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls; 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
the financial information / financial statements of the entities or business activities within the Group and its 
joint venture, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary, whose financial statements information reflect (before 
eliminating inter-company transactions and balances) total assets of 1,663.18 lakhs as at 31st March, 2025, total 
revenues of 1,593.88 and net cash inflows amounting to 32.55 for the year ended on that date, as considered 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These financial statements and information have been audited by 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of 
this subsidiary and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiary and associates is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the reports of the other auditor. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and 
the reports of the other auditor.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of accounts maintained for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary companies and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary companies respectively, covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies and 
its joint venture company, are disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure A’. Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matter to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 
financial position of the Group as detailed in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies did not have any long-term contracts including 
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derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company during the year ended 31 March 2025 and there were no 
amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
subsidiary companies covered under the Act, during the year ended 31 March 2025.

iv. (a) The respective managements of holding and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose 
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us that that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective managements of holding and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose 
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us that that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 
by the the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The dividend declared and paid by the holding company during the year ended 31 March 2025 in respect 
of such dividend declared for the previous year is in compliance with sec 123 of the companies act 2013 
as applicable to the extent it applies to payment of dividend. 

vi. Based on our examination, which includes test checks, the company and its subsidiary incorporated in 
India has used accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the 
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 
Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 
(the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in 
the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports 
issued by us for the Company and other auditor for subsidiary company included in the consolidated financial 
statements , to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse 
remarks in these CARO reports. 

For Surana Naveen Vikash & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 323231E 

Naveen Surana 
Partner  
Membership No. 057841 
UDIN: 25057841BMIKGA6681

Place: Bangalore 
     Date: 30th May 2025 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of B&B TRIPLEWALL 
CONTAINERS LIMITED ("the company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Opinion 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS 
LIMITED (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as ‘the Group’), as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, which are 
companies covered under the Act, as at that date. 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial Controls over 
financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies s, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
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of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of  consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the  consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

                                                                                      
For Surana Naveen Vikash & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 323231E 

Naveen Surana 
Partner  
Membership No. 057841 
UDIN: 25057841BMIKGA6681

Place: Bangalore 
     Date: 30th May 2025 
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Note 
No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024  As at April 01, 2023  

I ASSETS
Non Current Assets
 a) Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4.1     23,779.00                        7,835.63                              6,775.45                       
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4.2     16.36                               14,985.67                            5,970.82                       
(c) Investment Property 5        66.65                               71.01                                   75.82                            
(d) Other Intangible Assets 4.3     41.05                               35.73                                   40.55                            
(e) Intangible Assets Under Development 4.4     10.30                               -                                       -                                
(f) Financial Assets
    (i) Other Financial Assets 6        207.04                             166.93                                 115.24                          
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 7        254.58                             86.96                                   -                                
(h) Other Non Current Assets 8        279.38                             729.13                                 2,388.46                       
Total Non Current Assets 24,654.35                        23,911.06                            15,366.34                     

Current Assets
a) Inventories 9        7,465.20                          5,260.38                              6,031.11                       
b) Financial Assets
    i) Trade receivables 10      8,730.42                          7,887.97                              5,770.25                       
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11      47.62                               15.92                                   148.03                          
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 12      77.40                               44.12                                   46.53                            
   v) Other Financial Assets 13      81.63                               77.88                                   67.15                            
c) Other Current Assets 14      1,245.24                          488.67                                 922.93                          
Total Current Assets 17,647.51                        13,774.93                            12,986.00                     

TOTAL - ASSETS 42,301.87                        37,685.99                            28,352.34                     
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1) EQUITY
a)  Equity share capital 15      2,051.12                          2,051.12                              2,051.12                       
b)  Other Equity 16      9,091.56                          9,849.58                              8,345.03                       
c)  Non Controlling Interest 17      (100.68)                           (42.85)                                 29.82                            

Total Equity 11,042.00                        11,857.85                            10,425.97                     

2) LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    i) Borrowings 18      12,595.22                        12,933.87                            8,379.98                       
    ia) Lease Liabilities 19      1,125.78                          1,123.29                              871.90                          
    ii) Other Financial Liabilities 20      35.07                               32.84                                   30.75                            
b) Provisions 21      38.89                               25.41                                   13.48                            
c ) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 22      -                                   -                                       8.26                              
d) Other Non Current Liabilities 23      1.93                                 3.86                                     5.78                              

Total Non Current Liabilities 13,796.88                        14,119.27                            9,310.14                       

Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    i) Borrowings 24      10,044.79                        6,019.38                              4,771.66                       
   ii) Lease Liabilities 25      214.81                             191.03                                 109.43                          
   iii) Trade Payables 26      

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise & small 
enterprise

58.66                               447.44                                 2.11                              
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro small 
enterprises

5,301.77                          3,669.32                              3,163.26                       
   iv) Other Financial Liabilities 27      0.82                                 0.82                                     0.82                              
b) Other Current Liabilities 28      1,842.12                          1,236.70                              494.87                          
c) Provisions 29      0.01                                 0.00                                     -                                
d) Current Tax  Liabilities (Net) 30      -                                   144.19                                 74.06                            

Total Current liabilities 17,462.98                        11,708.87                            8,616.22                       
     Total Liabilities 31,259.86                        25,828.14                            17,926.37                     

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 42,301.87                        37,685.99                            28,352.34                     
Material Accounting Policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                       CEO
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2025

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

Particulars

Membership No. 057841
UDIN: 25057841BMIKGA6681

Place : Bangalore   
Date : 30 May 2025

As per our report of even date 
FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 323231E

NAVEEN SURANA
Partner
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Note 
No.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

I Revenue from operations 31     49,175.92                        37,539.43                           
II Other Income 32     97.19                               90.40                                  

III Total Revenue (I +II) 49,273.11                        37,629.83                           

IV Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 33     32,680.74                        26,723.42                           
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress

34     319.34                             86.35                                  
Employee benefits expense 35     4,531.77                          2,595.20                             
Finance costs 36     1,766.36                          768.55                                
Depreciation and amortization expense 37     3,113.26                          1,239.41                             
Other expenses 38     7,644.70                          3,969.51                             

Total Expenses 50,056.17                        35,382.43                           
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV) (783.06)                           2,247.40                             
VI Exceptional items

VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V - VI) (783.06)                           2,247.40                             
VIII Tax expense: 39
(1) Current tax -                                  703.73                                
(2) Deferred tax (167.65)                           (96.58)                                 
(3) Prior Period tax (4.55)                               (3.48)                                   

Total tax expense (172.20)                           603.66                                
IX Profit for the period (VII - VIII) (610.86)                           1,643.73                             

X Other comprehensive income 40
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

   (a) Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 0.17                                 (5.39)                                   

      (b) Income tax on (a) above (0.04)                               (1.36)                                   
B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                  -                                      

Total - Other comprehensive income 0.13                                 (6.75)                                   

XI Total comprehensive income for the year  [(IX)+(X)] (610.73)                           1,636.98                             
XII Profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to: 

   a) Owners of the Company (553.02)                           1,716.41                             
   b) Non Controlling Interest (57.84)                             (72.67)                                 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to: 
   a) Owners of the Company 0.12                                 (6.75)                                   
   b) Non Controlling Interest 0.02                                 -                                      
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to: 
   a) Owners of the Company (552.90)                           1,709.66                             
   b) Non Controlling Interest (57.83)                             (72.67)                                 

XIII Earning per equity share of Rs 10 each
(1) Basic 41 (2.70)                               8.37                                     
(2) Diluted 41 (2.70)                               8.37                                     

Material Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                       CEO
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2025

Chartered Accountants

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

As per our report of even date 
FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO

Date : 30 May 2025

Firm's Registration No. 323231E

NAVEEN SURANA
Partner

Membership No. 057841
UDIN: 25057841BMIKGA6681

Place : Bangalore   

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 145



A . Equity Share Capital (Rs. in Lakhs)
 No. of shares Amount

2,05,11,240                 2,051.12         
-                               -                 

2,05,11,240                 2,051.12         
Changes in equity share capital from 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025 -                               -                 

2,05,11,240                 2,051.12         

 General Reserve  Retained earnings  Security Premium  Other items of OCI  Total Equity 

-                         6,280.46                   2,086.15                   (1.39)                           8,365.21         
Prior Period Errors -                         (20.18)                       -                            -                              (20.18)            
Balance as on 01.04.2023 (After prior period errors) -                         6,260.28                   2,086.15                   (1.39)                           8,345.03         

-                         1,716.41                   -                            -                              1,716.41         
-                         -                            -                            (6.75)                           (6.75)              
-                         (205.11)                     -                            -                              (205.11)          
-                         1,511.29                   -                            (6.75)                           1,504.55         
-                         7,771.57                   2,086.15                   (8.14)                           9,849.58         

 General Reserve  Retained earnings  Security Premium  Other items of OCI  Total Equity 

-                         7,771.57                   2,086.15                   (8.14)                           9,849.58         
-                         (553.02)                     -                            -                              (553.02)          
-                         -                            -                            0.12                             0.12                

Dividend Paid for 23-24 -                         (205.11)                     -                            -                              (205.11)          
-                         (758.13)                     -                            0.12                             (758.02)          
-                         7,013.44                   2,086.15                   (8.03)                           9,091.56         

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

-                                                                                                                 

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                       CEO
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2025

B. Other equity

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

                                   Particulars
Balance as on 01.04.2023
Changes in equity share capital from 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024
Balance as on 01.04.2024

Balance as on 31.03.2025

Other comprehensive income

Particulars

Balance as on 01.04.2023 (Before prior period errors)

Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income
Dividend Paid for 22-23

 Total Comprehensive income for the year 
Balance as on 31.03.2024

 Particulars 

Balance as on 01.04.2024
Profit for the year

Membership No. 057841
UDIN: 25057841BMIKGA6681

Place : Bangalore  
Date : 30 May 2025

FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 323231E

 Total Comprehensive income for the year 
Balance as on 31.03.2025

NAVEEN SURANA
Partner

As per our report of even date 
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax (783.06)                       2,247.40                         
Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation / Amortization 3,113.26                      1,239.41                         
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (14.79)                        (6.78)                              
Finance cost 1,766.36                      768.55                            
Rental Income (67.60)                         (64.47)                             
Interest Income (8.67)                           (7.88)                               
Other Comprehensive Income 0.17                             (5.39)                               

Operating Profit before working capital changes 4,005.67                      4,170.82                         
Movements in working Capital :
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables 1,243.68                      951.38                            
(Decrease) / Increase in other current liabilities 605.42                         741.82                            
(Decrease) / Increase in Current provision 0.01                             0.00                                
(Decrease) / Increase in other non current financial liabilities 2.23                             2.09                                
(Decrease) / Increase in Non Current Provisions 13.47                           11.94                              
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Non current liabilities (1.93)                           (1.93)                               
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories (2,204.83)                    770.74                            
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables (842.46)                       (2,117.72)                        
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Bank balances (33.28)                         2.41                                
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial assets (3.75)                           (10.73)                             
Decrease / (Increase) in Other current assets (608.17)                       434.82                            
Decrease / (Increase) in Other non current financial assets (46.21)                         (66.48)                             
Decrease / (Increase) in Other non current assets 449.75                         1,659.34                         
Cash generated from / (used in) Operations 2,579.61                      6,548.51                         
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) 288.04                         630.68                            
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities(A) 2,291.58                      5,917.83                         

Cash Flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (3,880.94)                    (10,828.46)                      
Purchase of Intangible assets (20.10)                         -                                  
Sale of Fixed Assets 40.64                           8.15                                
Interest Income 8.67                             7.88                                
Rental Income 67.60                           64.47                              
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (3,784.13)                    (10,747.95)                      

Cash Flows from financing activities
Increase (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings (338.65)                       4,553.89                         
Increase (Decrease) in Working Capital Borrowings 4,025.41                     1,247.72                        
Dividend paid (205.11)                       (205.11)                           
Principle payment of lease liabilities (191.03)                       (129.94)                           
Interest payment of lease liabilities (45.92)                         (86.55)                             
Finance cost paid (1,720.44)                    (681.99)                           
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C ) 1,524.26                      4,698.02                         

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 31.70                           (132.11)                           

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15.92                           148.03                            
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 47.62                           15.92                              

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 10.65                           11.43                              
With Banks 36.97                           4.49                                
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 47.62                           15.92                              

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL NAVEEN SURANA
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                       CEO Partner
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684 Membership No. 057841

UDIN: 25057841BMIKGA6681

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore   
Date : 30 May 2025 Date : 30 May 2025

FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 323231E

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

As per our report of even date 
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information
The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of "B&B Triplewall Containers Limited" ("the Holding
Company") and its subsidiary "B&B Colour Cartons Private Limited" (Collectively referred to as "the Company") for the year ended
31st March 2025.
B&B Triplewall Containers Limited is a Public Limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India. Its registered office and
principal place of business are situated at SY.NO.263/2/3, Marsur Madivala, Kasaba Hobli, Anekal Taluk, Bengaluru-562106. The
Principal activities of the Company are manufacture and sale of corrugated boards & boxes.

The Principal activities of the Company consists of manufacture and sale of corrugated boards & boxes and Packaging materials.

2 Basis Of Preparation And Measurement of Consolidated financial Statements
2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements (‘financial statements’) have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during
the periods presented.

2.2 Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial Statements
These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual

basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all
the periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time
between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items included in the
financial statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates (the ‘functional currency’).

2.3 Basis of measurement of Consolidated financial Statements
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date.

2.4 Key Accounting Estimates And Judgements
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind
AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and
liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of investments, useful lives of
property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets and fair value measurement of financial instruments, these are
discussed below. Key sources of estimation of uncertainty in respect of revenue recognition, employee benefits and provisions and
contingent liabilities have been discussed in their respective policies.
Impairment of Financial assets
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is
indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may
result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. 
Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

2.5 Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA has not notified any new
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
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3 Material Accounting Policies
The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these consolidated financial statements, unless
otherwise indicated.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost comprising of purchase price and any initial directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use, less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and impairment
loss, if any.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. 
Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-
in-progress”.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written-down-value method based on estimated useful life prescribed under
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and
installation is complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted  prospectively, if appropriate.

3.2 Investment Property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model. The cost of Investment property
includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When 
significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as
incurred.An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

3.3 Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are recognised, if the future economic benefits attributable to the assets are expected to flow to the Company and
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. The same are amortised over the expected
duration of benefits. Such intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end
of each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.4 Impairment of Non-financial assets - Tangible and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of
the fair value less cost to sell and the value-inuse) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.5 Investments
Non current investments include Investments in subsidiary and these are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27”.

3.6 Inventories 
Inventories such as Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods, Stores & Spares, Tools valued at the lower of cost or net
realisable value (except scrap/waste which are value at net realisable value).
The cost is computed on weighted average basis. Finished Goods and Process Stock include cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

3.7 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The specific recognition criteria described below also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised, when control of goods being sold is transferred to customer and where there are no
longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in contracts are considered as fulfilled in accordance with the terms 
agreed with the respective customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured on transaction price excluding estimates of variable consideration that is allocated to
performance obligations. Sales as disclosed, are exclusive of Goods and Services Tax.

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The
transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
goods to a customer, excluding amount collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes collected on behalf of government).
The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed consideration, variable consideration (if reversal is
less likely in future), or both.
The transaction price is allocated by the Company to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods to the customer.

Sale of services
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services.
Interest income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Rental income
Rental income from investment properties s is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.
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3.8 Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current
and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively. Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost
and other expenses respectively. Interest Income, if any, related to Income tax is included in Other Income.

Current income taxes
Current income tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/loss for the year using applicable tax rates for the
relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years.
Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and
income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net
basis. 

Deferred income taxes
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the orresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority.

3.9 Leases
Leases in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments and receipts under such leases are recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease unless the lease payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, in which case the same are recognised as an expense in line with
the contractual term.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership to the lessee.

“Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend
or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease
term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the
contract will be exercised. Accordingly, it recognises the Right of use asset as well as Lease obligations considering the lease
agreement”

3.10 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost
of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing  costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.

3.11 Foreign Currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the
balance sheet date, the gain or loss arising from such translations are recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

3.12 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

3.13 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non -
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, financing and
investing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.14 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the holding
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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3.15 Foreign Currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the
balance sheet date, the gain or loss arising from such translations are recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

3.16 Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund, superannuation scheme,
employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when
services are rendered by the employees. Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a
government administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as
Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly  contributions.

Defined benefit plans
The Company provides for retirement/post-retirement benefits in the form of gratuity, and compensated absences, in respect of
certain employees. All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, made by
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The classification of the Company’s net obligation into current and
non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report. 

For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss is the cost of
accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the costs of individual events such as past/future service
benefit changes and settlements (such events are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss). The amount of net
interest expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged or credited
to ‘Finance costs’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial
assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and
subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.17 Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. The Company
derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. 

A. Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which are recognised at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction
cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at -
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured
on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. In case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is
attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are subsequently classified and measued at:

 - amortised cost 
 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
 - fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except during the period the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets.

[a] Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are cash, balances with bank and short-term (three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

[b] Trade Receivables and Loans
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through
the expected life of financial instrument.
[c] Debt Instruments
Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
[i] Measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

[ii] Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured
using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

[iii] Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair
value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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[d] Equity Instruments:
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Company may, on
initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.
The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is recognised
as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair
value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in
OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity
instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Financial Asset
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following:

i. Trade receivables
ii. Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables)
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognized as loss allowance.
In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the 
financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month
ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime
ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance.
Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-
month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months from the
reporting date.
ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of outcomes,
taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The
provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted
for forwardlooking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are updated.
ECL allowance recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
under the head ‘Other expenses’.

B. Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through
profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are  measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.18 Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the holding company and its subsidiary. The Holding

Company consolidates all the entities where control exists as per Ind AS 110, Consolidated Financial Statements from the date
control commences until the date control ceases. Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. 

The Holding company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off
during the year are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the holding company gains control until the 
date the Holding company ceases to control the subsidiary. Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the
Parent Company, i.e., year ended on 31st March. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been combined on a line-by-line
basis, after fully eliminating intra-Company balances, and intra-Company transactions and resulting unrealised profits. Unrealised
losses resulting from intraCompany transactions are not eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intraCompany transactions.

Consolidated Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the owners of the holding
company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. Any difference
between the amount at which the non- controlling interest are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to shareholders .
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Note: 5
Investment Property

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2024 24.81                       185.68                       210.49                         
Additions During the Year -                          -                            -                             
Deletions during the Year -                          -                            -                             
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2025 24.81                       185.68                       210.49                         

-                          -                            -                             
Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2024 -                           (139.48)                      (139.48)                       
Current Year Depreciation -                          (4.36)                         (4.36)                          
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -                          -                            -                             
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31, 2025 -                           (143.84)                      (143.84)                       

-                          -                            -                             
Net Block as on April 1, 2024 24.81                       46.20                         71.01                           
Net Block as on March 31, 2025 24.81                       41.84                         66.65                           

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Block Cost as on April 1, 2023 24.81                       185.68                       210.49                         
Additions During the Year -                          -                            -                             
Deletions during the Year -                          -                            -                             
Gross Block Cost as on March 31, 2024 24.81                       185.68                       210.49                         

-                          -                            -                             
Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1,2023 -                           (134.67)                      (134.67)                       
Current Year Depreciation -                          (4.81)                         (4.81)                          
Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -                          -                            -                             
Accumulated Depreciation as on March 31, 2024 -                           (139.48)                      (139.48)                       

-                          -                            -                             
Net Block as on April 1,2023 24.81                       51.01                         75.82                           
Net Block as on March 31, 2024 24.81                       46.20                         71.01                           

Notes : 
1) Company’s investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulates impairment losses.
2) Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment properties:

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Rental income derived from Investment properties 67.60                      64.47                        
Less : Direct operating expenses (0.47)                       (0.39)                         

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation 67.13                       64.08                         
Less : Depreciation (4.36)                       (4.81)                         
Profit arising from investment properties 62.77                       59.26                         

The changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the period ended  March 31, 2025  were as follows:

The changes in the carrying value of Investment Property for the year ended March 31, 2024  were as follows:

3) As at 31 March 2025, the fair value of investment properties (Above land and building) is Rs.11.82 crores
This valuation is based on sanction letter of bank, which is based on an assessment by an external valuer appointed by the bank; and 
management’s internal estimates considering prevailing market conditions, location, property condition, and other relevant factors.
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Note: 6
Other Non Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Security Deposits                               207.04                              166.93                            115.24 

Total Other Non Current Financial Assets 207.04                            166.93                            115.24                          

Note: 7
Deferred tax assets (Net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Related to Disallowances u/s 43B & 40A(7) of Income Tax Act. 1961                                 33.90                                35.61                                    -   
Related to Property, Plant & Equipments other than Right of Use(ROU)                             (155.71)                               (20.14)                                    -   
Related to Unabsorbed income tax losses                               342.70                                49.15                                    -   
Related to ROU, Lease liablities & Other financial assets/liabilities                                 35.44                                22.34                                    -   
Related to Margin loss removal on Inventory in consolidation                                 (1.75)                                      -                                      -   

Total Deferred Taxes 254.58                            86.96                              -                                

Note: 8
Other Non Current Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Capital Advances                               278.97                              729.13                         2,388.46 
Prepaid Rent - Non Current Portion                                   0.41                                      -                                      -   

Total Other Non Current Assets 279.38                            729.13                            2,388.46                       

Note: 9
Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Raw Materials                            4,985.43                           3,040.72                         3,752.42 
Work-in-Progress                                 64.74                              134.19                            182.12 
Finished goods                               734.35                              984.24                         1,022.66 
Stores and Spares, Tools and Others                            1,631.67                           1,083.76                         1,060.91 
Stock of Scrap                                 49.01                                17.47                              13.00 

Total Inventories 7,465.20                         5,260.38                         6,031.11                       

Note: 10
Trade receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Trade Receivables- Secured

Trade Receivables- Unsecured
 - 9.1  Considered good
(a)
Less than 6 months                            8,424.58                           7,468.76                         5,246.65 
6 months – 1 year                               185.11                              302.91                            413.99 
1-2 years                                   0.00                                      -                                      -   
2-3 years                                       -                                        -                                      -   
More than 3 years                                       -                                        -                                      -   

(b)
Less than 6 months                                       -                                        -                                      -   
6 months – 1 year                                       -                                        -                                      -   
1-2 years                                 47.55                              149.23                            135.26 
2-3 years                               132.10                                33.19                              50.29 
More than 3 years                                 61.82                                50.18                              31.81 

(c)
Less than 6 months                                       -                                        -                                      -   
6 months – 1 year                                       -                                        -                                      -   
1-2 years                                       -                                        -                                      -   
2-3 years                                       -                                        -                                      -   
More than 3 years                                       -                                        -                                      -   

Less:- Loss Allowance (Expected Credit Loss)                             (120.74)                             (116.30)                           (107.74)

Total Trade receivables 8,730.42                         7,887.97                         5,770.25                       

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED
CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.

Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWALA, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2025
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Note: 11
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Cash on hand                                 10.65                                11.43                                5.03 
Balances with banks

-  In current account                                 36.97                                  4.49                            143.01 

Total Cash and bank balance 47.62                              15.92                              148.03                          

Note: 12
Other Bank Balances

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Other Fixed deposit with Banks                                   4.45                                  2.57                              36.13 
Earmarked balances with banks                                 72.95                                41.55                              10.40 

Total Other  bank balances 77.40                              44.12                              46.53                            

Note: 13
Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Loans & Advances to Employees                                 49.42                                48.32                              37.59 
Security Deposits                                 32.21                                29.56                              29.56 

Total Other Current Financial Assets 81.63                              77.88                              67.15                            

Note: 14
Other Current Assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Advances given to Suppliers of Goods                               677.51                              100.74                            155.81 
Balance with Govt. Authorities                               463.59                              277.00                            601.00 
Prepaid Expenses                               104.14                              110.92                            119.96 
Other Current Assets                                       -                                        -                                44.11 

Total Other Current Assets 1,245.24                         488.67                            922.93                          
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Note: 16
Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Share Premium
Opening Balance                            2,086.15                           2,086.15                         2,086.15 
Less: Utilised/ transferred during the year                                       -                                        -                                      -   

Closing Balance                            2,086.15                           2,086.15                         2,086.15 

Retained Earnings
Opening Balance                            7,771.57                           6,260.28                         6,280.46 
Add: Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year                             (553.02)                           1,716.41                                    -   
Less: Prior Period Error                                       -                                        -                               (20.18)
Dividend Payment                             (205.11)                             (205.11)                                    -   

Closing Balance                            7,013.44                           7,771.57                         6,260.28 

Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans :
Opening Balance                                 (8.14)                                 (1.39)                               (1.39)
Add or Less : Transactions during the year                                   0.12                                 (6.75)                                    -   

Closing Balance                                 (8.03)                                 (8.14)                               (1.39)
Total Other Equity                            9,091.56                           9,849.58                         8,345.03 

Note: 17
Non Controlling Interest

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
Opening non controlling interest                               (42.85)                                29.82                              30.00 
Share of Profit/(loss) for the year                               (57.83)                               (72.67)                               (0.18)

Total Non Controlling interest                             (100.68)                               (42.85)                              29.82 

Note: 18
Non Current Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

1.5 % Cumulative Non-Convertible Non-Participating Redeemable 
Preference shares of Rs.1000 

                                52.34                                50.14                              48.07 

Secured
Term Loans-
  From Bank**                            5,331.21                           6,418.93                         4,227.86 
  From Other Parties**                                 34.61                                50.15                              64.16 
Unsecured
Loans and Advances From Related Parties****                            2,350.04                           1,813.50                         1,673.25 
Loans and Advances From Directors****                            1,780.00                           1,552.50                         1,312.50 
Inter-corporate Borrowings***                            3,047.02                           3,048.65                         1,054.15 

Total Non Current Borrowings 12,595.22                       12,933.87                       8,379.98                       

Notes:

Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at Sy No. 75 -1A2/1B1 & 73-2A Thyagarasanapalli (Shoolagiri) Hosur Taluk, 
Krishnagiri District, TN .

* 5,467 1.5 % preference shares have been issued as fully paid up by way of bonus shares without payment being received in cash to the equity 
shareholders of B&B Triplewall Containers Limited (formerly known as B&B Triplewall Containers Private Limited,) as  at January 8, 2016 in terms 
of the scheme of amalgamation ('the Scheme') sanctioned by the High Court of Judicature at Karnataka vide Order dated January 8, 2016. Company 
may redeem these preference shares after the completion of 3 years from the date of issue at it's option. There is no any redemption during the 
current financial year.

** Details of securities given in respect of term loans from banks and its current maturities:
All the term loans from banks are primarily secured by first charge of hypothecation on / mortgage of the assets financed under the respective term 
loans. Besides this, following assets are given as common collateral security for the term loans and short term borrowings from banks, namely, -
First and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets of the Company except the assets exclusively financed by other banks.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at No. 86, KIADB Industrial Area, Bommasandra Jigani Link Road, Bangalore.
Freehold industrial property owned by the Company located at Sy. No. 263 2/3, Marsur Madival Village, Near Attibele Industrial Area, Anekal 
Taluk, Bangalore.

Interest is payable at the end of each financial year.

Leasehold land Plot no B-8, B-12 to B-18 Sipcot Industrial Complex Bargur, Parandapalli Village, Pochampali Taluk, Krishnagiri District Tamil Nadu 
635206.
Personal Guarantee of Promoters / Directors / KMP / Shareholders (Relatives of Directors / KMPs) of the equity shareholding namely Alok 
Agarwal, Amit Agarwal, Manish Bothra, Nishant Bothra, Ravi Agarwal, Sidharth Agarwal, Manish Kumar Gupta.

The Rate of interest on term loans varies from 8.6% p.a to 13.5% p.a
** Details of security given in respect of term loans and it's current maturities from other parties:
The Company has acquired solar equipment on an Equated Monthly Installment (EMI) basis,. The liability arising from this arrangement has been 
classified under borrowings as above. This facility has been a availed from ORB energy private limited secured by said solar equipment with rate of 
interest 10.5% p.a and repayable in 59 equated monthly installments.
*** Terms & Conditions for Inter Corporate Borrowing
a) Outstanding unsecured inter corporate loan of Rs.3000 Lakhs is from Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd repayable in financial year 2026-27.  Out of which 
Rs. 2000 lakhs carries rate of interest at 11.75% p.a and rest 1000 lakhs carries at 11.25% p.a.
b) The remaining outstanding of Rs.47.01 Lakhs inter corporate loan is from Amit Packs Private Limited (related party) which is unsecured and it 
carries rate of interest at 15% p.a.
Interest is payable at the end of each financial year.
**** Terms & Conditions for Loans & Advances from related parties and directors
Loans and Advances from related parties and directors are repayable after 31st March 2026, These loans carries rate of interest at 12% to 15%p.a,
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Note: 19
Non Current Lease Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Lease Liabilities                            1,125.78                           1,123.29                            871.90 

Total Non Current Lease Liabilities 1,125.78                         1,123.29                         871.90                          

Note: 20
Other Non Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Rental Deposit                                 35.07                                32.84                              30.75 

Total Non Current Financial Liabilities 35.07                              32.84                              30.75                            

Note: 21
Non Current Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

a) Provision for Employee benefits
Gratuity                                 38.89                                25.41                              13.48 

Total Non Current Provisions 38.89                              25.41                              13.48                            

Note: 22
Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Related to Disallowances u/s 43B & 40A(7) of Income Tax Act. 1961                                       -                                        -                               (30.51)
Related to Property, Plant & Equipments other than Right of Use(ROU)                                       -                                        -                                46.36 
Related to ROU, Lease liablities & Other financial assets/liabilities                                       -                                        -                                 (7.59)

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities -                                  -                                  8.26                              

Note: 23
Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Advance Rent Received                                   1.93                                  3.86                                5.78 

Total Non Current Provisions 1.93                                3.86                                5.78                              

Note: 24
Current Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
Secured :
Loans repayable on demand
-   From Bank
   -     Working capital loan*                            6,091.84                           3,424.31                         3,475.56 
 -   From Other Parties**                            2,500.00                           1,000.00                         1,000.00 
Current Maturities of long term debt***                            1,452.95                           1,595.08                            296.11 

Total Current Borrowings 10,044.79                       6,019.38                         4,771.66                       

Note:

These loan carries floating interest rate , Present it is 8.8% p.a.
*** Out of total current maturities of long term debt Rs. 1437.40 Lakhs are from banks and remaining 15.55 Lakhs is of current maturity of term loan 
availed from ORB energy Pvt ltd.

* Working Capital Loans from Banks are secured by the following assets:
Hypothecation of all the current assets of the Company comprising, inter alia, of inventories of raw material, work-in-progress and finished goods, 
trade receivables, book debts and other current assets.
Common collateral securities are given in respect of the term loans (see Note 18 above on Non-Current Borrowing) and working capital loans from 
banks. Please refer sub-note  under Note 18 above on Long Term Borrowings for details of common collateral securities given in respect of the 
Working Capital Loans From Banks.
These loans carries floating interest rate, 9% linked to repo rate + Spread 2.5% to 10.3% linked to MCLR 1 month + Spread 2.77%.

** Loans from other party is taken from Bajaj Finance Limited (NBFC) which is secured by following assets:
First Pari Passu charge on Present and Future Current Assets of the company, Second Pari Passu charge on Present and Future Fixed Assets of the 
company, Unconditional and irrevocable Personal Guarantee from the Promoters, Demand Promissory note and Letter of Continuity, Personal 
Guarantee of Mr. Manish Gupta, Mr. Ravi Agarwal,  Mr.  Manish Bothra and Mr. Alok Aggarwal.
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Note: 25
Current Lease Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Current maturities of lease liabilities                               214.81                              191.03                            109.43 
Total Current Lease Liabilties 214.81                            191.03                            109.43                          

Note: 26
Trade Payables

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

(i) MSME
Less than 1year                                 58.66                              447.44                                2.11 
1-2 years                                       -                                        -                                      -   
2-3years                                       -                                        -                                      -   
More than 3 years                                       -                                        -                                      -   
(ii) Others
10.2 (ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises
Less than 1year                            5,230.83                           3,632.85                         3,116.31 
1-2 years                                 34.68                                35.84                              46.95 
2-3years                                 35.84                                  0.63                                    -   
More than 3 years                                   0.41                                      -                                      -   

 Total Trade Payables 5,360.43                         4,116.75                         3,165.38                       

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;

                                58.66                              447.44                                2.11 

ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 
MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

                                      -                                        -                                      -   

iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

                                      -                                        -                                      -   

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year; and

                                      -                                        -                                      -   

v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006.

                                      -                                        -                                      -   

Note: 27
Other Current Financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Preference Dividend payable                                   0.82                                  0.82                                0.82 

Total  Other Current Financial Liabilities 0.82                                0.82                                0.82                              

Note: 28
Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Statutory Dues                               365.25                              285.11                            106.21 
Advance from Customers                                   5.31                                12.06                              12.18 
Payable for Expenses                            1,341.72                              846.49                            324.79 
Advance Rent Received                                   1.93                                  1.93                                1.93 
Unpaid Dividend Payable                                   0.40                                  0.19                                0.02 
Unspent CSR Liability                               127.50                                90.92                              49.75 

Total Other Current Liabilities                            1,842.12                           1,236.70                            494.87 

Note: 29
Current Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

a) Provision for Employee benefits
Gratuity                                   0.01                                  0.00                                    -   

Total Current Provisions                                   0.01                                  0.00                                    -   

Note: 30
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

Provision for Taxation                                       -                             1,407.45                         1,303.07 
Less : Advance Income tax (Inc  TDS receivable)                                       -                            (1,119.08)                        (1,154.95)

Total Current Tax Liabilities (Net) -                                  144.19                            74.06                            

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006) (“MSMED Act, 2006”):
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Note: 39
Taxation

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

(i) Profit and Loss section

(ii) Other comprehensive income section

Total (172.16)                           605.02                            

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Computed expected tax expense                             (179.32)                              595.02 
Tax effects on adjustments which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating 
taxable income :

Total impact                                 11.67                                12.12 

Income tax expense as per P&L (Current + Deferred tax) (167.65)                           607.14                            

Note: 40
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Items that will not be Reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss -

Total 0.13                                (6.75)                              

Note: 41
Earning Per Share

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders

Basic earning per share (2.70)                               8.37                                
Diluted earning per share (2.70)                               8.37                                

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income 

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 162



Note: 42

a) Contingent liabilities not provided for :

Name of 
the Statue 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Income Tax 
Act 45.83                                       45.83                                   

Income Tax 
Act 100.49                                     100.49                                 

Name of 
the Statue 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Income Tax 
Act -                                          63.93                                   

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
98.71                                      1,837.99                             

Note: 43
Foreign Currency Income & Expenditure

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

3,701.66                                 301.30                                
174.87                                    196.99                                

1,049.73                                 935.01                                

0.03                                        0.03                                    

Note: 44
Payment To Auditors

2024-25 2023-24
5.25                                        4.25                                    
1.25                                        1.25                                    

Note: 45
Leases
a. Company as a Lessor

2024-25 2023-24
67.60                                      64.47                                  

68.95                                      67.60                                  
59.84                                      128.79                                

-                                         -                                      

b. Company as a Lessee

2024-25 2023-24
1,252.62                                      969.06                                     
223.39                                    477.72                                

-                                         -                                      
(250.33)                                       (194.15)                                    

1,225.68                                      1,252.62                                  

2024-25 2023-24
1,314.32                                      981.33                                     

217.29                                         462.93                                     
94.65                                           86.55                                       

-                                              -                                           
(285.67)                                       (216.49)                                    

1,340.59                                      1,314.32                                  
214.81                                         191.03                                     

1,125.78                                      1,123.29                                  
The effective interest rate considered for lease liabilities is 6.80% to 7% , with maturity between 2025-2030.

2024-25 2023-24
250.33                                         194.15                                     

94.65                                           86.55                                       

Disputes pending under Income tax Act are as provided below :

Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is Pending

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at  March 31,2025

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Undisputed demands pending under Income tax Act are as provided below :

Nature of Dues Authority Where it is pending

Income Tax Order (AY 2017-18) Commissioner of Income Tax(Appeals)

Income Tax Order(AY 2013-14) High Court of Karnataka

b) Commitments :
Particulars

Commitments on capital account

Income Tax Order(AY 2016-17)
DCIT/ACIT(Rectification Filed u/s 154 on Income Tax Act 
1961)

* The above demand is raised by the income tax department on account of non consideration of TDS and advance tax credit of the enterprise which is merged into the 
company.
The Company has filed application with DCIT/ACIT for rectification order and same has been accepted and demand has been closed.

Value of Imports on CIF Basis in respect of
Raw Materials

Particulars

Expenditure in Foreign Currency :
LEI renewal charges

Stores, Chemicals and Packing Materials
Capital Goods

Particulars

The Company has given building on operating lease. The lease agreement is for a period of 10 years and renewable by mutual consent or mutually agreeable terms and 
1.8 years of lease term is left as on 31st March 2025 . The particulars in respect of such lease is as follows:-

Particulars

Statutory Audit & Limited Review
Tax Audit

Future minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable operating lease
   -  Not later than one year

Lease receipts recognised in statement of profit and loss

i)  The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of leases for premises (office, factory,  godown, etc.) These leasing arrangements are usually renewable 
by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
ii)The Company also has certain leases of buildings with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these 
leases.

   -  Later than one year and not later than five years
   -  Later than five years

iii) Following is carrying value of right of use assets recognized and movements thereof during the year ended  31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2025.

Particulars Right of Use Assets - Buildings 

Deletions
Depreciation charge

Balance as at year Beginning 
Additions

Particulars
Balance as at year beginning

Balance as at Year End

iv) The following is the carrying value of lease liability recognized and movements thereof during the year  ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2025.

Deletions
Payment of Lease Liabilities

Additions during the year
Finance cost accrued during the year

Non-Current Lease Liability

v)  Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the year

Balance as at year end
Current maturities of Lease Liability

 Finance cost accrued during the year (included in finance cost)

Particulars
 Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets -Building

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 163



Note: 46

Information about products and services

Information about major customers

Note: 47
Comparative statement of of Quarterly returns of Current Asset  submitted to the bank in relation to books of accounts

Particulars   Books 
 Statement  to 
bank  Variance(Rs.)  Period 

Debtors                      7,490.48                  7,492.57                      (2.09) QTR-1

Inventory                      5,873.09                  5,873.09                           -   QTR-1

Debtors                      7,200.60                  7,225.08                    (24.48) QTR-2

Inventory                      6,557.51                  6,557.51                           -   QTR-2

Debtors                      6,959.49                  6,961.92                      (2.43) QTR-3

Inventory                      6,512.14                  6,512.14                           -   QTR-3

Debtors                      8,714.93                  8,745.42                    (30.49) QTR-4

Inventory                      7,237.10                  6,566.27                   670.82 QTR-4

Reason for Difference in Inventory Value:

Note: 48
Corporate Social Responsibility
Sl.No 2024-25 2023-24

1 55.01                                      51.74                                  
2 Amount of expenditure incurred -                                         -                                      
3 Shortfall at the end of the year 55.01                                      51.74                                  
4 Total of previous years shortfall 72.49                                      39.19                                  

5 Reason for shortfall

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent CSR 
account and same will be 
expended  in Rural 
Development over a period 
of time.

Amount has been  
transfered to Unspent 
CSR account and same 
will be expended  in 
Rural Development over 
a period of time.

6  Rural Development  Rural Development 

7 NA NA

8 NA NA

Note: 49

Note: 50

Note: 51

Note: 52

Ind AS-108  Operating Segments

B&B Triplewall Containers Limited manufactures and supplies paper container packaging products. The Company offers corrugated box, boards, and sheets.

Above 10% sales or purchases to one person
There are two companies from which the company earns more than 10% of its revenue.

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating
officer i.e. Managing director of the company. 
On review of operations, it is identified that the company has only one segment.

Reason for Difference in Debtors Value: The Debtors /Creditors has been reclassified /Regrouped during the year, Which was not considered in the statement 
submitted to bank.

Nature of CSR activities
Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in 
relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard.

Pariculars
Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

The reason for difference in inventory value in Q4 is on account of Stock in transit which was not considered in the statement submitted to bank.
Note: Stock and Debtors as per books above is given as per standalone financials of the company as subsidiary has not availed any short term borrowings from banks in 
security of stock and debtors.

There is no impairment to assets as per Indian Accounting Standard 36 issued by Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2014. Consequently, there is no impairment
loss debited to Profit and Loss account.

The Company has classified certain class of security deposits such as electricity, telephone, and other similar deposits as non-current financial assets, as they are
refundable only upon discontinuation of the related services and are not expected to be realized within 12 months from the reporting date.
In accordance with Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments (Para 5.1.1 and B5.1.1), financial assets are initially measured at fair value. However, in this case, the difference
between the transaction value and fair value is not considered material due to the nature, amount, and expected duration of these deposits. Accordingly, the deposits
have been measured at transaction value.

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual 
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately

Balances in parties’ accounts are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the In-direct Method prescribed in Indian Accounting Standard– 7 issued under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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Note: 53

[i] Changes in the Present Value of Obligation

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
    - change in financial assumptions

    - experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

Benefits Paid
Present Value of Obligation as at the end

[ii] Change in Fair value of plan assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning
Investment Income
Employer's Contributions
Benefits Paid
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end

[iii] Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Current Liability (Short term)
Non-Current Liability (Long term)
Present Value of Obligation(Net Liability)

[iv] Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Current Service Cost
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit 
Liability / (Asset)
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

[v] Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year

Actuarial (gains) / losses
    - change in demographic assumptions
   - change in financial assumptions
   - experience Variance (i.e. ACTUAL experience vs 
assumptions.
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income

(vi) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date :

Discount rate (per annum)

Salary growth rate (per annum)

(vii) Gratuity - As per actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2024

Actuarial Assumptions
Mortality rate
Normal retirement age
Attrition / Withdrawal rates (per annum) 15.00% 15.00%

58 Years 58 Years
100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14

Particulars As on
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

10.00% for the first 3 years, and 7.00% 
thereafter

10.00% for the first 3 years, and 7.00% 
thereafter

6.50% 7.15%

Particulars As on
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                                (0.17)                                                                  5.39 

                                                              (13.23)                                                                  0.03 

                                                                (0.60)                                                                  0.23 

                                                                13.66                                                                  5.13 
                                                                     -                                                                        -   

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                                46.84                                                                35.56 

                                                                48.65                                                                36.55 

                                                                  1.82                                                                  0.99 

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                                38.89                                                                25.41 
                                                                38.90                                                                25.42 

                                                                  0.01                                                                  0.00 

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                              187.85                                                              148.14 

                                                                  0.60                                                                (0.23)

                                                                (6.47)                                                                (8.07)
                                                                35.00                                                                30.00 
                                                                10.58                                                                  8.62 
                                                              148.14                                                              117.81 

Particulars For the period ending
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                              226.75                                                              173.56 
                                                                (6.47)                                                                (8.07)

                                                                     -                                                                        -   
                                                                13.66                                                                  5.13 

                                                              (13.23)                                                                  0.03 

                                                                13.31                                                                35.56 
                                                                45.92                                                                  9.60 
                                                              173.56                                                              131.29 

Employee benefit plans 
1. Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2025

In accordance with Indian law, the Company operates a scheme of gratuity which is a defined benefit plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump 
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 
days’ salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service. The Company 
manages the plan through a trust. The following table sets out the details of the defined benefit retirement plans and the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements:

Particulars
For the period ending

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
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(viii) Summary of Membership Status

Number of employees
Total monthly salary (Rs.)
Average past service (years)
Average age (years)
Average remaining working life (years)
Number of completed years valued
Expected remaining working life (years)

(ix) Sensitivity Analysis

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate (- / + 1%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

 240.33
6.8% 

 211.50
-6.0% 

 184.11             
6.5% 

 162.79                                  
-5.8% 

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)                                                                          
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

211.58
-6.0%

239.94
6.6%

162.80                                                                                                                                                                    
-5.8%

183.89                             
6.4%

Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

240.97
7.0%

213.51
-5.2%

179.33                        
3.7%

166.66                                          
-3.6%

Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

225.10
0.0%

225.10
0.0%

172.85                          
0.0%

172.86                                  
0.0%

Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment.

2.  Defined contribution plans:
A sum of Rs. 155.28 Lakhs has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of Company’s contribution to provident fund and
employees state insurance.

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to
time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20 Lakhs.

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration of the liabilty is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to
market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants
in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present
value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liabilty.

Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to
the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate
cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availabilty of
enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Risk analysis
Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary over time. Thus,
the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

The assumptions used in this Report, other than the rates of mortality, are the expectations of the Company for future years. The Company
acknowledges that it has been advised to consider the relevant factors (including historical trends, which may or may not be suitable for future
projections or may be suitable only after certain adjustments / modifications) in determination of assumptions.

The Company has also been advised on the sensitivity of results to change in the chosen assumptions and experience variance / adjustments, Since
it is the Company's prerogative to decide on expected future trends and since the Company is best aware of the various factors affecting the future
trends, the assumptions given by the Company have been accepted.

The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in future years, determined
considering the general trend in inflation, senority, promotions, past experience and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in
employment market, etc.

Attrition rate indicated above represents the Company's best estimate of employee turnover in future (other than on account of retirement, death or
disablement) determined considering various factors such as nature of business, retention policy, industry factors, past experience, etc.

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. For change in assumptions please refer below where assumptions for prior
period, if applicable, are given.

The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. It is based on the yields / rates available on
applicable bonds as on the current valuation date.

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

226.75 173.56

Particulars
As on

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Significant actuarial assumptions for the detemination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. 
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the 
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars As on
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                                                                  5.87                                                                  5.88 
                                                                1,856                                                                1,540 
                                                                27.60                                                                28.30 
                                                                30.43                                                                29.72 
                                                                  2.56                                                                  2.55 
                                                              134.52                                                              107.61 
                                                                   744                                                                   619 

Particulars As on
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
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Note: 54
Related Parties Disclosures
As per IND AS 24 , the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

SI NO Relationship
1 Director
2 KMP
3 Director
4 Director
5 KMP
6 Director
7 KMP
8 Relatives of Director
9 Relatives of Director
10 Director is Karta
11 KMP IS KARTA
12 Relatives of Director
13 Relatives of Director
14 Relatives of Director
15 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
16 Director is Karta
17 Relatives of Director
18 Relatives of Director
19 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
20 Relatives of Director
21 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
22 Relatives of Director
23 Relatives of Director
24 Relatives of Director
25 Relatives Of Director Is Karta
26 KMP IS KARTA
27 Relatives of Director
28 Director is Karta
29 Relatives of Director
30 KMP IS KARTA
31 Relatives of Director
32 Relatives of Director
33
34
35
36
37 SINGLA PACKAGING

Disclosure of transactions with related parties

SI NO 2024-25 2023-24
1

267.50                             358.50                                             
Alok Agarwal 40.00                              13.50                                              
Manish Bothra -                                 40.00                                              
Manish Kumar Gupta 167.00                            291.00                                            
Ravi Agarwal 60.50                              14.00                                              

KMP 58.00                               10.40                                               
Amit Agarwal 7.00                                10.40                                              
Sidharth Agarwal 39.00                              -                                                 
Nishanth Bothra 12.00                              -                                                 

225.00                             7.50                                                 
-                                 7.50                                                

Qualipack Logistics Pvt Ltd 225.00                            -                                                 

KMP is Karta: 8.80                                 3.30                                                 
Amit Agarwal HUF 6.30                                3.30                                                
Sidharth Agarwal HUF 2.50                                -                                                 

Director is a Karta: 45.80                               2.40                                                 
Ravi Agarwal HUF 40.00                              -                                                 
Alok Agarwal HUF 5.80                                2.40                                                

159.80                             79.85                                               
Alka Gupta 21.00                              50.00                                              
Aarti Agarwal 2.60                                11.50                                              
Nidhi Agarwal -                                 8.35                                                
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 8.20                                10.00                                              

6.00                                -                                                  
Neha Agarwal 1.00                                -                                                  
Nirmal Kumar Bothra 75.00                              -                                                  
Champa Bothra 35.00                              -                                                  
Jyothi Bothra 11.00                              -                                                  

8.30                                5.80                                                
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal HUF 8.30                                5.80                                                
Relative of Director is karta:

Relative of Director:

Ritu Agarwal

Directors :

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
Amit Packs Private Limited

Particulars
Loan Accepted

RITU AGARWAL
SIDHARTH AGARWAL HUF
SWATI BOTHRA
VIDYA DEVI AGARWAL
AMIT PACKS PRIVATE LIMITED

 Enterprises over which 
Directors
have significant influence 

KAUSHIK PRODUCTS
RD INDUSTRIES
SAPTHAGIRI PACKAGING

NEHA AGARWAL
NIDHI AGARWAL
NIRMAL KUMAR BOTHRA HUF
NISHANT BOTHRA HUF
RANJANA DEVI AGARWAL
RAVI AGARWAL HUF

MEERA GUPTA
MOHANLAL AGARWAL
MOHANLAL AGARWAL HUF
NAVAL AGARWAL
NAVAL AGARWAL HUF
NEELAM AGARWAL

KAMAKHYA PRASAD AGARWAL
KAMAKHYA PRASAD AGARWAL HUF
MANISH BOTHRA HUF

NISHANT BOTHRA
RAVI AGARWAL
SIDHARTH AGARWAL
AARTI AGARWAL
ALKA GUPTA
ALOK AGARWAL HUF

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at  March 31, 2025

Name of Related Parties
ALOK AGARWAL
AMIT AGARWAL
MANISH BOTHRA
MANISH KUMAR GUPTA

AMIT AGARWAL HUF
CHAMPA BOTHRA
JYOTI BOTHRA
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2
40.00                               70.00                                               

Alok Agarwal 40.00                              -                                                 
Manish Bothra -                                  70.00                                               

68.70                               10.00                                               
Ritu Agarwal -                                 10.00                                              
Neha Agarwal 28.70                              -                                                 
Ritu Agarwal 40.00                              -                                                 

1.63                                 13.00                                               
1.63                                13.00                                              

3

Director : 210.30                             229.57                                             
Alok Agarwal 14.95                              17.11                                              
Ravi Agarwal 28.78                              29.04                                              
Manish Bothra 13.92                              16.92                                              
Manish Kumar Gupta 152.65                            166.50                                            

KMP : 19.94                               15.72                                               
Amit Agarwal 7.24                                5.27                                                
Nishant Bothra 1.38                                0.90                                                
Sidharth Agarwal 11.32                              9.55                                                

KMP Is Karta: 17.40                               18.55                                               
Amit Agarwal Huf 3.90                                3.74                                                
Nishant Bothra Huf 9.60                                12.00                                              
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 3.90                                2.81                                                

Director is Karta: 22.95                               22.82                                               
Alok Agarwal Huf 3.24                                3.02                                                
Manish Bothra Huf 12.96                              16.20                                              
Ravi Agarwal Huf 6.75                                3.60                                                

Relatives of Director: 130.23                             119.21                                             
Aarti Agarwal 4.01                                2.94                                                
Alka Gupta 39.88                              33.27                                              
Champa Bothra 16.34                              17.71                                              
Jyoti Bothra 7.24                                6.39                                                
Meera Gupta 10.40                              13.01                                              
Mohanlal Agarwal 0.66                                0.83                                                
Neha Agarwal 3.96                                3.16                                                
Nidhi Agarwal 4.14                                3.28                                                
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 13.46                              12.35                                              
Ritu Agarwal 9.64                                10.33                                              
Swati Bothra 5.66                                5.19                                                
Vidya Devi Agarwal 1.38                                1.73                                                
Nirmal Kumar Bothra 13.45                              9.04                                                

Relative of Director is Karta: 25.48                               28.03                                               
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 6.38                                6.05                                                
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 3.96                                4.95                                                
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 15.14                              17.04                                              

25.38                               19.57                                               
Amit Packs Private Limited 5.77                                8.27                                                
Qualipack Logistics Pvt Ltd 19.61                              11.30                                              

4

KMP: 252.00                             144.00                                             
Amit Agarwal 84.00                               48.00                                               
Nishant Bothra 84.00                              48.00                                              
Sidharth Agarwal 84.00                              48.00                                              

Directors: 408.00                             228.00                                             
Alok Agarwal 84.00                              48.00                                              
Ravi Agarwal 84.00                               48.00                                               
Manish Bothra 84.00                              48.00                                              
Manish Kumar Gupta 156.00                             84.00                                               

5

(313.91)                           (186.45)                                           
                                (8.25)                                               (25.98)
                              (63.77)                                               (27.90)
                            (173.60)                                             (121.79)
                              (68.30)                                               (10.79)Singla Packaging

Remuneration

Outstanding (receivable )/payable as at year end

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging

Interest Expenses

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
Amit Packs Private Limited

Loan Repaid
Director :

Relative of Director:
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                             221.69                                                47.15 
-                                  2.49                                                 

196.73                            9.85                                                
12.57                               12.17                                               
12.39                               22.64                                               

6

410.52                             173.65                                             
47.02                               48.65                                               

Qualipack Logistics Pvt Ltd 363.50                            125.00                                            

Directors: 1,813.24                         1,576.82                                          
129.24                            120.32                                            
116.00                            116.00                                            

1,312.00                         1,145.00                                          
256.00                            195.50                                            

Director Is Karta: 201.44                             153.59                                             
Alok Agarwal Huf 29.44                              21.59                                              
Manish Bothra Huf 108.00                            108.00                                            
Ravi Agarwal Huf 64.00                              24.00                                              

KMP: 209.98                             124.22                                             
Amit Agarwal 64.08                              44.18                                              
Nishant Bothra 18.00                              6.00                                                
Sidharth Agarwal 127.90                            74.03                                              

KMP Is Karta: 148.67                             130.32                                             
Amit Agarwal Huf 34.82                              26.41                                              
Nishant Bothra Huf 80.00                              80.00                                              
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 33.85                              23.92                                              

Relatives of Director: 1,177.78                         928.69                                             
Aarti Agarwal 34.84                              24.81                                              
Alka Gupta 343.57                            263.66                                            
Champa Bothra 165.70                            123.27                                            
Jyoti Bothra 66.20                              47.77                                              
Meera Gupta 86.71                              86.71                                              
Mohanlal Agarwal 5.50                                 5.50                                                 
Neha Agarwal 6.00                                 26.27                                               
Nidhi Agarwal 34.50                              27.07                                              
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 114.53                            92.21                                              
Ritu Agarwal 75.74                              80.18                                              
Swati Bothra 47.20                              39.77                                              
Vidya Devi Agarwal 11.50                               11.50                                               
Nirmal Kumar Bothra 185.80                             100.00                                             

Relative of Director Is Karta: 215.43                             195.21                                             
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 56.23                              43.44                                              
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 33.00                              33.00                                              
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 126.20                            118.77                                            

7

22.84                               20.94                                               
5.19                                 7.44                                                 

Qualipack Logistics Pvt Ltd 17.65                              13.50                                              

Directors: 189.27                             209.85                                             
13.46                              18.64                                              
12.53                              15.22                                              

137.38                            149.85                                            
25.90                              26.14                                              

Director Is Karta: 20.65                               21.29                                               
Alok Agarwal Huf 2.92                                3.47                                                
Manish Bothra Huf 11.66                              14.58                                              
Ravi Agarwal Huf 6.07                                3.24                                                

KMP: 17.95                               24.23                                               
Amit Agarwal 6.52                                9.43                                                
Nishant Bothra 1.25                                0.81                                                
Sidharth Agarwal 10.19                              13.99                                              

KMP Is Karta: 15.66                               20.16                                               
Amit Agarwal Huf 3.51                                4.13                                                
Nishant Bothra Huf 8.64                                10.80                                              
Sidharth Agarwal Huf 3.51                                5.23                                                

Manish Kumar Gupta
Ravi Agarwal

Ravi Agarwal

Interest on loan outstanding at the year end

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Amit Packs Private Limited

Alok Agarwal
Manish Bothra

Loans outstanding at the year end

Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Amit Packs Private Limited

Alok Agarwal
Manish Bothra
Manish Kumar Gupta

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging
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Relatives of Director: 114.29                             163.34                                             
Aarti Agarwal 3.61                                5.34                                                
Alka Gupta 35.89                              51.26                                              
Champa Bothra 14.71                              18.64                                              
Jyoti Bothra 6.51                                8.45                                                
Meera Gupta 9.36                                11.71                                              
Mohanlal Agarwal 0.59                                0.74                                                
Neha Agarwal 0.65                                5.54                                                
Nidhi Agarwal 3.73                                5.65                                                
Ranjana Devi Agarwal 12.11                              16.24                                              
Ritu Agarwal 8.68                                20.04                                              
Swati Bothra 5.10                                7.37                                                
Vidya Devi Agarwal 1.24                                 1.55                                                 
Nirmal Kumar Bothra 12.10                               10.80                                               

Relative of Director Is Karta: 22.93                               29.56                                               
Kamakhya Prasad Agarwal Huf 5.74                                 7.07                                                 
Mohanlal Agarwal Huf 3.56                                4.46                                                
Nirmal Kumar Bothra Huf 13.63                              18.03                                              

8

5,428.86                         3,329.97                                          
769.43                             808.13                                             

1,171.46                        823.16                                            
2,463.15                         972.18                                             
1,021.64                         726.17                                             

Qualipack Logistics Pvt Ltd 3.17                                0.34                                                

9

620.48                             591.74                                             
6.52                                 41.19                                               

340.25                             180.62                                             
162.41                             270.94                                             
111.27                             98.56                                               

Qualipack Logistics Pvt Ltd 0.04                                 0.43                                                 

10 Rent Paid
33.49                               31.89                                               

Jyoti Bothra 5.58                                 5.32                                                 
8.01                                7.63                                                
4.86                                4.63                                                
5.58                                5.32                                                

Aarti Agarwal 6.30                                6.00                                                
Ritu Agarwal 3.15                                3.00                                                

11.16                               10.63                                               
Singla Packaging 11.16                              10.63                                              

Relative of Director:

Neha Agarwal
Nidhi Agarwal
Swati Bothra

Enterprises over which directors are able to exercise significant 
influence:

Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging

Purchases
Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:

Sales
Enterprises over which directors is able to exercise significant 
influence:
Kaushik Products
Rd Industries
Sapthagiri Packaging
Singla Packaging
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Note: 55

 Financial instruments 

Particulars  Amortised cost  Financial assets / liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss  Total carrying value 

ASSETS
Non Current
    (i) Investments -                                                -                                                        -                                                          
    (ii) Security Deposits 207.04                                          -                                                        207.04                                                    

Current 
    i) Trade receivables 8,730.42                                       -                                                        8,730.42                                                 
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 47.62                                            -                                                        47.62                                                      
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 77.40                                            -                                                        77.40                                                      
   iv) Loans -                                                -                                                        -                                                          
   v) Other Financial Assets 81.63                                            -                                                        81.63                                                      

Total 9,144.12                                       -                                                        9,144.12                                                 

LIABILITES
Non Current
    i) Borrowings 12,595.22                                     -                                                        12,595.22                                               
    ia) Lease Liabilities 1,125.78                                       -                                                        1,125.78                                                 
    ii) Other Financial Liabilities 35.07                                            -                                                        35.07                                                      
Current 
    i) Borrowings 10,044.79                                     -                                                        10,044.79                                               
   ii) Lease Liabilities 214.81                                          -                                                        214.81                                                    
   iii) Trade Payables 5,360.43                                       -                                                        5,360.43                                                 
   iv) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                              -                                                        0.82                                                        

Total 29,376.91                                     -                                                        29,376.91                                               

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024 are as follows :

Particulars  Amortised cost  Financial assets / liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss  Total carrying value 

ASSETS
Non Current
    (i) Investments -                                                -                                                        -                                                          
    (iii) Security Deposits 166.93                                          -                                                        166.93                                                    

Current 
    i) Trade receivables 7,887.97                                       -                                                        7,887.97                                                 
    ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15.92                                            -                                                        15.92                                                      
   iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 44.12                                            -                                                        44.12                                                      
   iv) Loans -                                                -                                                        -                                                          
   v) Other Financial Assets 77.88                                            -                                                        77.88                                                      

Total 8,192.81                                       -                                                        8,192.81                                                 

LIABILITES
Non Current
    i) Borrowings 12,933.87                                     -                                                        12,933.87                                               
    ia) Lease Liabilities 1,123.29                                       -                                                        1,123.29                                                 
    ii) Other Financial Liabilities 32.84                                            -                                                        32.84                                                      

Current 
    i) Borrowings 6,019.38                                       -                                                        6,019.38                                                 
   ii) Lease Liabilities 191.03                                          -                                                        191.03                                                    
   iii) Trade Payables 4,116.75                                       -                                                        4,116.75                                                 
   iv) Other Financial Liabilities 0.82                                              -                                                        0.82                                                        

Total 24,417.98                                     -                                                        24,417.98                                               

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost :

Note: 56
Financial Risk Management 

a) Credit Risk

Financial instruments by category

 The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2025 are as follows : 

The management believes that the fair values of non-current financial assets (e.g. loans and others),current financial assets (e.g., cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, loans and others excluding other derivative assets) and current financial liabilities (e.g. trade payables and other payables excluding derivative liabilities)
approximate their carrying amounts.

The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of Financial risks from its operations. The Key financial risks include Credit Risk, Market Risk and Liquidity Risk. The
Company also uses derivative instruments on selective basis prudently to manage the volatility of financial markets and minismise the adverse impact on its foinancial
Performance in accordance Risk Management Policy Framework.

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or pay the amounts due causing financial loss to the company. The company
is exposed  to credit risk from its operating activities primarily arising from trade recerivables from customers and other financial instruments.

Customer Credit risk is managed as per the Company's established policy, procedures and control framework relating to customer credit risk management. The company
assesses the credit quality of the counterparties taking into account their financial position and credit worthiness, the age of specific receivable balance and the current and
expected collection trends, age of its contracts in progress, historically observed default over the expected life of trade receivables. Credit risk is also actively managed to the
extent feasible by securing payment through letter of credit, advance payment and bill discounting facility. The Company's exposure ( unsecured trade receivables ) and
credit ratings of its counter parties are continously monitored and assessed while ensuring that the aggregate value of the transaction is reasonably spread amongst
counterparties. The company uses the expected credit loss model to assess the impairement allowance on trade receivables, if any on the reporting date and accordingly
applied the same for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables.
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31st March 2025 31st March 2024

                                                 8,730.42                                                    7,887.97 

                                                  (116.30)                                                     (107.74)
                                                      (4.44)                                                         (8.56)
                                                           -                                                                -   
                                                  (120.74)                                                     (116.30)

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Sensitivity on USD import exposure 1% Increase (0.71)                                                     (0.08)                                                       
Sensitivity on USD import exposure 1% Decrease 0.71                                                      0.08                                                        
Sensitivity on EUR import exposure 1% Increase -                                                        0.70                                                        
Sensitivity on EUR import exposure 1% Decrease -                                                        (0.70)                                                       
Sensitivity on CHF import exposure 1% Increase (0.04)                                                     0.00                                                        
Sensitivity on CHF import exposure 1% Decrease 0.04                                                      (0.00)                                                       

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Borrowings from banks & other financial institutions 100 basis points increase (138.92)                                                 (105.64)                                                   
Borrowings from banks & other financial institutions 100 basis points decrease 138.92                                                  105.64                                                    

Not Later than 1 year More than 1 year
    i) Borrowings                                                10,044.79                                                  12,595.22 
    ia) Lease Liabilities                                                     214.81                                                    1,125.78 
   ii) Trade Payables                                                  5,360.43                                                              -   
    iii) Other Financial Liabilities                                                         0.82                                                         35.07 

Not Later than 1 year More than 1 year
    i) Borrowings                                                  6,019.38                                                  12,933.87 
    ia) Lease Liabilities                                                     191.03                                                    1,123.29 
   ii) Trade Payables                                                  4,116.75                                                              -   
    iii) Other Financial Liabilities                                                         0.82                                                         32.84 

Note: 57
Capital Management

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
22,640.01                                             18,953.25                                               

(47.62)                                                    (15.92)                                                      
(77.40)                                                   (44.12)                                                     

22,514.99                                              18,893.21                                                
11,042.00                                             11,857.85                                               

2.04                                                       1.59                                                         

Exposure to credit risks
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life- time
Expected Credit Losses (LECL)
Trade receivables

Amounts written-off
Closing allowance
During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, The company has recognized 'nil' impairment loss on all financial assets except for trade receivables above.

Summary of change in loss allowances measured using LECL
Opening allowance
Provided during the year

b) Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
  i) Foreign Exchange Risk 
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily on account of import payables denominated in different currencies as given below. As of the reporting date, the
Company has not entered into any forward contracts or derivative instruments to hedge its foreign currency exposure.
The Company monitors exchange rate movements and evaluates its foreign currency exposure regularly. However, it currently follows a natural hedging approach, relying
on short credit cycles and internal risk assessments rather than active hedging.

    Sensivity analysis:

  ii) Interest rate risk
The Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings at variable rates linked to market benchmarks . As of the reporting date, the Company has not entered
into any interest rate swaps or derivative contracts to hedge its exposure.
Management regularly monitors interest rate movements and evaluates borrowing structures. Based on current interest rate trends and the size of borrowings, the
Company has assessed that the risk is acceptable and has opted not to hedge.

    Sensivity analysis:

Particulars % Change Impact on Profit Before Tax - Increase /(Decrease)

Particulars % Change Impact on Profit Before Tax - Increase /(Decrease)

Particulars

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities as on 31st March 2024
Particulars

c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises from the Company's inability to meet its financial obligations in a timely manner. The Company manages this risk through regular monitoring of cash
flows and maintaining sufficient undrawn working capital facilities. The Company does not use hedging instruments for liquidity risk but relies on operational cash flow
and sanctioned credit lines.

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities as on 31st March 2025

Debt
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company's primary objective with respect to capital management is to ensure continuity of business and support the growth of the Company while at the same time
provide reasonable returns to its various stakeholders and maximise shareholders value. In order to achieve these objectives, requirement of capital is reviewed periodically
with reference to operating and business plans that take into account capital expenditure and strategic investments. Sourcing of capital is done through judicious
combination of equity/ internal accruals and borrowings, both short term and long term. The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors
and the Company monitors capital by applying net debt (total borrowings less investments and cash and cash equivalents) to equity ratio. The Company manages its
capital structure and make adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of financial covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31st
March, 2025 or corresponding previous year.

Particulars

Total Equity
Net Debt to Equity ratio

          Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Net Debt
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Note: 60

Note: 61
Other Statutory Information

e) The Company does not have any transaction with struck-off companies.

i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Note: 62
Other discosures

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED As per our report of even date 

FOR SURANA NAVEEN VIKASH & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 323231E

MANISH KUMAR GUPTA         RAVI AGARWAL           AMIT AGARWAL NAVEEN SURANA
Managing Director                          WTD & CFO                       CEO Partner
DIN: 03568502                                 DIN: 00636684 Membership No. 057841

UDIN: 25057841BMIKGA6681

JAGRATI VARSHNEY
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Date : 30 May 2025 Date : 30 May 2025

CIN No : L21015KA2011PLC060106.
Address: SY NO 263/2/3 MARSUR MADIWAL, KASABA HOBLI ANEKAL TALUK, BANGALORE KA 562106 IN

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2025

B&B TRIPLEWALL CONTAINERS LIMITED

c) The disclosures under additional reporting requirements, which are not applicable to the company are not disclosed in the current year financial
statements.

a) The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financials statements included under Property Plant and Equipment (Excluding right of
use assets) and Investment Properties are held in the name of the company as at the balance sheet date.
b) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including, right to use the asset) or intangible asset or both during the year.
c)The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.
d) The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a willful defaulter at any time during the 
financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when the financial statements are approved.

f) The Company does not have any charge or satisfaction of charge which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory
period.

g) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities(intermediaries), with the
understanding that the intermediary shall;

- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries), or
   - Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

h) The Company does not have any transactions which are not recorded in the books of account but has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

a) As per the MCA notification dated August 05, 2022, Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules 2022. The books of accounts along with other
relevant records and papers of the companies are currently maintained in the electronic mode. These are readily accesible in india at all times and backup is
maintained on servers located in india, on daily basis.

b) The company is using accounting software that has an audit trail feature. The audit trail has been operated throughout the year for all transactions
recorded in the books of account and has not been tampered with. The audit trail has been preserved as per the statutory requirements.

The previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to facilitate comparison with current year’s figures.
Regrouping & Reclassification
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